# STATE OF HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION HIGHWAYS DIVISION

#### ADDENDUM NO. 1

## Kaumualii Highway Intersection Improvements at Waimea Canyon Drive and Menehune Road/Halepule Road PROJECT NO. 50B-01-14

The following amendments shall be made to the Bid Documents:

#### A. SPECIFICATIONS

- 1. Replace Section 102 Bidding Requirements and Conditions dated 5/22/20 with the attached Section 102 Bidding Requirements and Conditions dated r05/22/20.
- 2. Replace Section 103 Award and Execution of Contract dated 5/22/20 with the attached Section 103 Award and Execution of Contract dated r05/15/20.
- 3. Replace Section 108 Prosecution and Progress dated 12/27/19 with the attached Section 108 Prosecution and Progress dated r05/28/20.
- 4. Replace Section 209 Temporary Water Pollution, Dust, and Erosion Control dated 12/27/19 with the attached Section 209 Temporary Water Pollution, Dust, and Erosion Control dated r05/28/20.
- 5. Contractor should note expedited timelines for submittals required for this project under special provision sections 108 and 209.

#### B. PROPOSAL

1. Replace Proposal page P-1 dated 05/07/20 with the attached Proposal page P-1 dated r06/01/20.

## C. PRE-BID MEETING MINUTES

1. Attached are the May 27, 2020 Pre-Bid Meeting Minutes and Attendance Sheet for your Information.

Please acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 1 by recording the date of its receipt in the space provided on page P-4 of the Proposal.

JADE T. BUTAY

Director of Transportation

## "SECTION 102 - BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS

**102.01 Prequalification of Bidders.** Prospective bidders shall be capable of performing the work for which they are bidding.

In accordance with HRS Chapter 103D-310, the Department may require any prospective bidder to submit answers to questions contained in the 'Standard Qualification Questionnaire For Prospective Bidders On Public Works Contracts' furnished by the Department, properly executed and notarized, setting forth a complete statement of the experience of such prospective bidder and its organization in performing similar work and a statement of the equipment proposed to be used, together with adequate proof of the availability of such equipment. Whenever it appears to the Department, from answers to the questionnaire or otherwise, that the prospective bidder is not fully qualified and able to perform the intended work, the Department will, after affording the prospective bidder an opportunity to be heard and if still of the opinion that the bidder is not fully qualified to perform the work, refuse to receive or consider any bid offered by the prospective bidder. All information contained in the answers to the questionnaire shall be kept confidential. Questionnaire so submitted shall be returned to the bidders after serving their purpose.

No person, firm or corporation may bid where (1) the person, firm, or corporation, or (2) a corporation owned substantially by the person, firm, or corporation, or (3) a substantial stockholder or an officer of the corporation, or (4) a partner or substantial investor in the firm is in arrears in payments owed to the State or its political subdivisions or is in default as a surety or failure to do faithfully and diligently previous contracts with the State.

**102.02 Contents of Proposal Forms.** The Department will furnish prospective bidders with proposal forms posted in HlePRO stating:

(1) The location,

(2) Description of the proposed work,

(3) The approximate quantities,

(4) Items of work to be done or materials to be furnished,

(5) A schedule of items, and

**(6)** The time in which the work shall be completed.

Documents attached to the proposal submittal are part of the proposal. The bidder shall not detach or alter the documents bound with or attached to the proposal when the bidder submits its proposal through HlePRO.

Also, the bidder shall consider other documents including the plans and specifications a part of the proposal form whether attached or not.

102.03 Issuance of Proposal Forms. Not applicable.

**102.04 Estimated Quantities.** The quantities shown in the contract are approximate and are for the comparison of bids only. The actual quantity of work may not correspond with the quantities shown in the contract. The Department will make payment to the Contractor for unit price items in accordance with the contract for only the following:

(1) Actual quantities of work done and accepted, not the estimated quantities; or

(2) Actual quantities of materials furnished, not the estimated quantities.

The Department may increase, decrease, or omit each scheduled quantities of work to be done and materials to be furnished. When the Department increases or decreases the estimated quantity of a contract item by more than 15% the Department will make payment for such items in accordance with Subsection 104.06 - Methods of Price Adjustment.

**102.05 Examination of Contract and Site of Work.** The bidder shall examine carefully the site of the proposed work and contract before submitting a proposal.

Due to the impacts of COVID 19, bidders must schedule their site visit with the Project Manager. **ALL PERSONS** examining the site of the proposed work will be **REQUIRED** to wear a mask for the entire duration of their stay. **NO PERSONS** will be allowed to enter the work site without a mask.

By the act of submitting a bid for the proposed contract, the bidder warrants that:

(1) The bidder and its Subcontractors have reviewed the contract documents and found them free from ambiguities and sufficient for the purpose intended;

(2) The bidder and its workers, employees and subcontractors have the skills and experience in the type of work required by the contract documents bid upon;

91	(3) Neither the bidder nor its employees, agents, suppliers or
92	subcontractors have relied upon verbal representations from the
93	Department, its employees or agents, including architects, engineers or
94	consultants, in assembling the bid figure; and
95	
96	(4) The basis for the bid figure are solely on the construction contract
97	documents.
98	
99	Also, the bidder warrants that the bidder has examined the site of the work.
100	From its investigations, the bidder acknowledges satisfaction on:
101	
102	(1) The nature and location of the work;
103	
104	<b>(2)</b> The character, quality, and quantity of materials;
105	
106	(3) The difficulties to be encountered; and
107	
108	(4) The kind and amount of equipment and other facilities needed;
109	
110	Subsurface information or hydrographic survey data furnished are for the
111	bidders' convenience only. The data and information furnished are the product of
112	the Department's interpretation gathered in investigations made at the specific
113	locations. These conditions may not be typical of conditions at other locations
114	within the project area or that such conditions remain unchanged. Also, conditions
115	found at the time of the subsurface explorations may not be the same conditions
116	when work starts. The bidder shall be solely responsible for assumptions,
117	deductions, or conclusions the bidder may derive from the subsurface information
118	or data furnished.
119	
120	If the Engineer determines that the natural conditions differ from that
121	originally anticipated or contemplated by the Contractor in the items of excavation,
122	the State may treat the difference in natural conditions, as falling within the
123	meaning of Subsection 104.02 – Changes.
124	102.06 Preparation of Proposal. The submittal of its proposal shall be on
125	The state of the s
126 127	forms furnished by the Department. The bidder shall specify in words or figures:
127	(1) A unit price for each pay item with a quantity given;
128	(1) A unit price for each pay item with a quantity given;
130	(2) The products of the respective unit prices and quantities
131	(2) The products of the respective unit prices and quantities
132	(3) The lump sum amount; and
132	(3) The lump sum amount; and
133	(4) The total amount of the proposal obtained by adding the amounts of
135	the several items.
136	the several items.
130	

The words and figures shall be in ink or typed. If a discrepancy occurs between the prices written in words and those written in figures, the prices written in words shall govern.

When an item in the proposal contains an option to be made, the bidder shall choose in accordance with the contract for that particular item. Determination of an option will not permit the Contractor to choose again.

The bidder shall sign the proposal properly in ink. A duly authorized representatives of the bidder or by an agent of the bidder legally qualified and acceptable to the Department shall sign, including one or more partners of the bidder and one or more representatives of each entity comprising a joint venture.

When an agent, other than the officer(s) of a corporation authorized to sign contracts for the corporation or a partner of a partnership, signs the proposals, a 'Power of Attorney' shall be on file with the Department or submitted with the proposal. Otherwise, the Department will reject the proposal as irregular and unauthorized.

The bidder shall submit acceptable evidence of the authority of the partner, member(s) or officer(s) to sign for the partnership, joint venture, or corporation respectively with the proposal. Otherwise, the Department will reject the proposal as irregular and unauthorized.

**102.07 Irregular Proposals.** The Department may consider proposals irregular and may reject the proposals for the following reasons:

(1) The proposal is a form not furnished by the Department, altered, or detached;

**(2)** The proposal contains unauthorized additions, conditions, or alternates. Also, the proposal contains irregularities that may tend to make the proposal incomplete, indefinite, or ambiguous to its meaning;

(3) The bidder adds provisions reserving the right to accept or reject an award. Also, the bidder adds provisions into a contract before an award;

(4) The proposal does not contain a unit price for each pay item listed except authorized optional pay items; and

**(5)** Prices for some items are out of proportion to the prices for other items.

**(6)** If in the opinion of the Director, the bidder and its listed subcontractors do not have the Contactor's licenses or combination of Contractor's licenses necessary to complete the work.

184	Where the prospective bidder is bidding on multiple projects simultaneously
185	and the proposal limits the maximum gross amount of awards that the bidder can
186	accept at one bid letting, the proposal is not irregular if the limit on the gross
187	amount of awards is clear and the Department selects the awards that can be
188	given.
189	
190	102.08 Proposal Guaranty. The Department will not consider a proposal of
191	\$25,000 or more unless accompanied by:
192	
193	(1) A deposit of legal tender; or
194	
195	(2) A valid surety bid bond, underwritten by a company licensed to issue
196	bonds in the State of Hawaii, in the form and composed, substantially, with
197	the same language as provided herewith and signed by both parties; or
198	
199	(3) A certificate of deposit, share certificate, cashier's check, treasurer's
200	check, teller's check, or official check drawn by, or a certified check
201	accepted by and payable on demand to the State by a bank, savings
202	institution, or credit union insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
203	Corporation (FDIC) or the National Credit Union Administration (NCUA).
204	
205	(a) The bidder may use these instruments only to a maximum of
206	\$100,000.
207	
208	<b>(b)</b> If the required security or bond amount totals over \$100,000
209	more than one instrument not exceeding \$100,000 each and issued
210	by different financial institutions shall be acceptable.
211	
212	(c) The instrument shall be made payable at sight to the
213	Department.
214	In accordance with HRS Chapter 103D-323, the above shall be in a sum
215	not less than 5% of the amount bid.

**102.09 Delivery of Proposal.** The bidder shall submit the proposal in HIePRO. Bids received after said due date and time shall not be considered.

218219220

221

222

**102.10 Withdrawal or Revision of Proposals.** A bidder may withdraw or revise a proposal after the bidder submits the proposal in HlePRO. Withdrawal or revision of proposal must be completed before the time set for the receiving of bids.

223224225

226

**102.11** Public Opening of Proposals. Not applicable.

28 an		isqualification of Bidders. The Department may disqualify a bidder s proposal for the following reasons:
29	(4)	Cubmittal of more than any proposal whether under the come or
30	(1)	Submittal of more than one proposal whether under the same or
1	amer	rent name.
2	(0)	Fridance of collection amount hidden. The Department will not
3	(2)	Evidence of collusion among bidders. The Department will not
4 5		gnize participants in collusion as bidders for any future work of the artment until such participants are reinstated as qualified bidders.
) )	Бера	artifierit until such participants are remstated as qualified bidders.
	(3)	Lack of proposal guaranty.
	(3)	Eack of proposal guaranty.
	(4)	Submittal of an unsigned or improperly signed proposal.
	(-)	oublinitial of all unsigned of improperty signed proposal.
	(5)	Submittal of a proposal without a listing of subcontractors or
	` '	aining only a partial or incomplete listing of subcontractors.
	COTILE	diffing offity a partial of incomplete listing of subcontractors.
	(6)	Submittal of an irregular proposal in accordance with Subsection
	` '	07 - Irregular Proposals.
	102.0	Tragalar reposals.
	(7)	Evidence of assistance from a person who has been an employee of
	` '	agency within the preceding two years and who participated while in
		e office or employment in the matter with which the contract is directly
		erned, pursuant to HRS Chapter 84-15.
	(8)	Suspended or debarred in accordance with HRS Chapter 104-25.
	( )	·
	(9)	Lack of competency or adequate machinery, plant, and other
	èquip	oment (which determination may be based on the financial statement
	and	experience questionnaires required under Subsection 102.01 -
	Preq	ualification of Bidders);
	(10)	Uncompleted work that might hinder or prevent the prompt
	comp	pletion of additional work if awarded;
	(11)	Failure to pay or settle bills due for labor and material on former
	contr	acts in force at the time of issuance of the solicitation;
	(12)	Failure to comply with qualification regulations of the Department;
	(13)	Default under previous contracts; or
	(14)	Lack of responsibility and cooperation from past work.
	(15)	Failure to complete the prequalification questionnaire, if applicable.
	(16)	Failure to attend the mandatory pre-bid meeting, if applicable.

**102.14** Substitution of Materials and Equipment Before Bid Opening. See Subsection 106.13 for Substitution Of Materials and Equipment After Bid Opening.

(A) General. When brand names of materials or equipment are specified in the contract documents, they are to indicate a quality, style, appearance, or performance and not to limit competition. The bidder shall base its bid on one of the specified brand names unless alternate brands are qualified as equal or better in an addendum. Qualification of such proposed alternate brands shall be submitted in HlePRO. The request must be posted in HlePRO no later than 14 calendar days before the bid opening date, not including the bid opening date

An addendum will be issued to inform all prospective bidders of any accepted substitution in accordance with Subsection 102.17 – Addenda.

 (B) Statement of Variances. The statement of variances must list all features of the proposed substitution that differ from the contract documents and must further certify that the substitution has no other variant features. The brochure and information submitted shall be clearly marked showing make, model, size, options, and any other features requested by the Engineer and must include sufficient evidence to evaluate each feature listed as a variance. A request will be denied if submitted without sufficient evidence. If after installing the substituted product, an unlisted variance is discovered, the Contractor shall immediately replace the product with a specified product at no increase in contract price and contract time.

**(C)** Substitution Denial. Any substitution request not complying with the above requirements will be denied.

## 102.15 Preferences.

(A) Preference for Hawaii Products. The bidder's attention is directed to Sections 103D-1001 and 103D-1002, HRS and Subchapter 1, Chapter 124, Subtitle 11 of Title 3, HAR which provide preferences for Hawaii Products. According to Section 103D-1002, HRS, the bidder may examine the Hawaii Products List at the State Procurement Office, State Office Building, 1151 Punchbowl Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813.

If a product listed in the Hawaii Products List is available and meets project specifications, such product will be designated in the contract documents as a qualified product which may be used in the performance of the project.

3	2	2
2	<u>ー</u> っ	2
2	ے 2	ر 1
3	2	4
3	2	5
3	2	6
3	2	7
3	_ つ	Ŕ
2	<u>~</u>	ი ი
3	2	ソヘ
3	3	U
3	3	1
3	3	2
3	3	3
3	3	1
2	っっ	
2	э 2	2
3	3	0
3	3	/
3	3	8
3	3	9
3	4	0
3	4	1
3	4	2
3	4	3
3	4	4
3	4	5
3	4	6
3	¬ 1	7
2	1	0
2	4	0
3	4	ソハ
3	2	U
3	٥	1
3	٥	2
3	5	3
3	5	4
3	5	5
3	5	6
3	5	2345678901234567890123456789012345678
3	5	8
3	5	9
3	6	0
	6	
3	6	2
2	6	3
2	6	ر 1
2	6	4
3	0	2
3	6	0
3	6	7
3	6	8
3	6	9
3	7	0
3	7	1
	,	
3	, 7	0 1 2

If the bidder intends to claim preference for products on the Hawaii Product List and such is not listed, the bidder shall immediately notify the Contracts Office, Department of Transportation, so the Engineer may take corrective or other appropriate actions.

It is further understood by the bidder that if the bidder elects to furnish qualified Hawaii Products, and is awarded the contract, then fails to use such products or meet the requirements of such preference, the bidder shall be subject to the statutory penalties, provided in HRS Chapter 103D-1002, and such other remedies as may be available to the State.

For the purpose of determining the lowest bid price only, the provisions of HRS Chapter 103D-1002 shall apply. Any contract awarded or executed in violation of HRS Chapter 103D-1002 shall be void and no payment shall be made on account of such contract.

**(B)** Preferences for Apprenticeship Programs. In accordance with ACT 17, SLH 2009 – Apprenticeship Program, a 5% bid adjustment for bidders that are parties to apprenticeship agreements pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS) Section 103-55.6 may be applied to the bidder's price for evaluation purposes. These procedures apply to public works projects with estimated cost of \$250,000 or more and entered into under the provisions of HRS Chapter 103.

The following provisions apply to this Apprenticeship Program.

## (1) Definitions

- (a) "Apprenticeable trade", HRS Section 103-55.6 (c), shall have the same meaning as 'apprenticeable occupation' pursuant to Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Section 30-1-5.
- **(b)** "Department" means the department of labor and industrial relations.
- **(c)** "Director" means the director of labor and industrial relations.
- (d) "Employ" means the employment of a person in an employer-employee relations.
- **(e)** "Governmental body" means as defined in HRS Section 103D-104.
- **(f)** "Party to an apprenticeship agreement" means party to a registered apprenticeship program with the department of labor and industrial relations.
- **(g)** "Preference" means the 5% by which the qualified bidder's offer amount would be decreased for evaluation purposes.

h) "Public work" shall be as defined in HRS Section 104-2 nd HAR Section 12-22-1.
) "Registered apprenticeship program" means a onstruction trade program approved by the department ursuant to HAR Section 12-30-1 and Section 12-30-4.
() "Sponsor" means an operator of an apprenticeship rogram and in whose name the program is approved and egistered with the department of labor and industrial relations ursuant to HAR Section 12-30-1.
<b>k)</b> Offeror – Entity/bidder submitting a proposal to ndertake a project.
Procurement Officer – Director of Transportation or his uthorized representative.
Qualification Procedures
Any bidder seeking the preference must be a party to an apprenticeship agreement registered with the department at the time the offer is made for each apprenticeable trade the bidder will employ to construct the public works projects for which the offer is being made.
1. The apprenticeship agreement shall be registered and conform to the requirements of HRS Chapter 372.
<ol><li>Subcontractors do not have to be a party to an apprenticeship agreement for the bidder to obtain the preference.</li></ol>
<ol><li>The bidder is not required to have apprentices in its employ at the time of submittal of an offer to qualify for the preference.</li></ol>
b) The department shall:
<b>1.</b> Develop and maintain a list of construction trades in registered apprenticeship programs which conform to HRS Chapter 372; and
<b>2.</b> Electronically post the list; including any amendments, on the department website (http://hawaii.gov/labor/wdd).
c) Bidder is responsible to comply with all submission equirements for registration of its apprenticeship program efore requesting a preference.

425 426 427			ctive regis	nall provide a certification by the sponsor of the stered apprenticeship programs covering the ) for the public works project.
428 429 430 431		(e) includ		ion Form 1 issued by the department shal
432			<b>1.</b> Co	ontractor information;
433			• •	e w e
434			<b>2.</b> So	olicitation reference;
435			<b>о</b> т	
436			<b>3.</b> Tr	ade(s);
437			4 5	
438			<b>4.</b> Da	ate and name of apprenticeship program;
439			<b>-</b> 0:	
440				gnature of authorized training coordinator or
441				trust fund administrator certifying that the
442				or is a participant in the program, and that the
443			program	is registered with the department;
444			•	
445				ontract information for sponsor's authorized
446			represen	tative signing the form;
447			<b>7</b> N.	
448				umber of apprentices enrolled in the program
449				who successfully completed the apprenticeship
450				in the past 12 months, including whether the
451				or is signatory to a collective bargaining
452			_	nt for that trade, or if not, provide for
453				ent of a copy of the agreement between the
454 455			contracto	or and the program.
456	(3)	Solicit	ation Prod	redures
457	(0)	Collon		ocadi es
458		(a)	If the NT	B indicates that this project is covered by this
459		prefer	ence, and	the offer is less than \$250,000 this preference
460		will st	ll be appli	cable in determining the lowest bidder.
461		/b\	Λ -l-: £	
462 463		(b)	A claim to	or this preference must include the following:
464			<b>1</b> ΔΙ	low bidder seeking to claim the preference to
465				trades the bidder will employ to perform the
466			work;	and the second s
467			•	
468				or each trade to be employed to perform the
469			work, th	e bidder shall submit a completed signed
470 471				Certification Form 1 verifying participation in ar ceship program registered with the department
471 472			apprend	comp program regiotered with the department
., 2				

473
473 474 475 476 477 478
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
40 <i>3</i>
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498 499
499
500
501 502 503
502
503
504
フロフ
506 507
507
508
509
510
511
512
512 513 514 515 516
513 514
515
515 516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
523 524
524 525
525 526
326

- **3.** The *Certification Form 1* shall be authorized by an apprenticeship sponsor of the department's list of registered apprenticeship programs. The authorization shall be an original signature by an authorized official of the apprenticeship sponsor; and
- **4.** The completed *Certification Form 1* for each trade must be submitted by the bidder with the offer. Previous certifications shall not apply unless allowed by the solicitation.
- **(c)** Upon receiving *Certification Form 1*, the procurement officer will verify with the department that the apprenticeship program is on the list of apprenticeship programs registered with the department. If the programs are not confirmed by the department, the bidder will not qualify for the preference.

## (4) Evaluation and Contract Award

- (a) If the bidder certifies participation in an apprenticeship program for each trade which will be employed by the bidder for the project, the procurement officer shall apply the preference and decrease the bidder's total bid amount by five per cent (5%) for evaluation purposes.
- **(b)** Should the bidder qualify for other statutory preferences (for example, Hawaii products), all applicable preferences shall be applied to the bidder's price.
- **(c)** The contract amount shall be the original offer amount, exclusive of any preference; the preference is only for evaluation purposes.
- (d) Any claims challenging a bidder's representation that the bidder is a participant in an apprenticeship program(s) as claimed, shall be submitted to the procurement officer. The procurement officer will refer the challenge to the department of labor and industrial relations who shall investigate any such claims and shall make a determination.

#### (5) Contract Administration

- (a) For the duration of a contract awarded utilizing the apprenticeship preference, the contractor shall certify each month that work is being conducted on the project, that it continues to be a participant in the relevant apprenticeship program for each trade it employs.
- **(b)** Monthly certification shall be made on *Monthly Certification Form 2* prepared and made available by the department, be a signed original by the respective apprenticeship program sponsors authorized official, and submitted by the contractor with its monthly payment requests.

- (c) Should the contractor fail or refuse to submit its monthly certification forms, or at any time during the construction of the project, cease to be a part to a registered apprenticeship agreement for each apprenticeable trades the contractor employs, or will employ, the contractor will be subject to the following sanctions:
  - **1.** Withholding of the requested payment until the required form(s) are submitted;
  - 2. Temporary or permanent cessation of work on the project, without recourse to breach of contract claims by the contractor; provided the agency shall be entitled to restitution for nonperformance or liquidated damages claims; or
  - **3.** Proceed to debar or suspend pursuant to HRS Section 103D-702.
- (d) If events such as "acts of God," acts of a public enemy, acts of the State or any other governmental body in its sovereign or contractual capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, freight embargoes, unusually severe weather, or strikes or other labor disputes prevent the contractor from submitting the certification forms, the contractor shall not be penalized as provided herein, provided the contractor completely and expeditiously complies with the certification process when the event is over.

This subsection shall not apply when its application will disqualify the State from receiving federal funds or aid.

- **(C)** Preference for Recycled Products. Recycled Products shall not apply to this project.
- **(D)** Evaluation Procedures and Contract Award. For bid evaluation, the Engineer will evaluate the bids by applying the applicable preferences selected by the bidders according to the contract. The Engineer will base the calculations for adjustments upon the original bid prices offered. If more than one preference applies, the evaluated bid price shall be the sum of the original bid price plus applicable preference adjustments.

If a bidder has designated use of a Hawaii Product and fails to provide the product, the contract will become void and no payments will be made.

The Engineer will award the contract to the responsible bidder submitting the responsive bid with the lowest evaluated bid price. The contract amount of the contract awarded shall be the original bid price offered exclusive of any preference.

102.16 Certification for Safety and Health Program for Bids in excess of
\$100,000. In accordance with HRS Chapter 396-18, the bidder or offeror, by
signing and submitting this proposal, certifies that a written safety and health plan
for this project will be available and implemented by the notice to proceed date for
this project. Details of the requirements of this plan may be obtained from the
State Department of Labor and Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and
Health Division (HIOSH).

**102.17 Addenda.** Addenda issued shall become part of the contract documents. Addenda to the bid documents will be provided to all prospective bidders via HIePRO. Each addendum shall be an addition to the contract documents. The terms and requirements of the bid documents (i.e. drawings, specifications and other bid and contract documents) cannot be changed prior to the bid opening except by a duly issued addendum."

**END OF SECTION 102** 

Make this section a part of the Standard Specifications:
"SECTION 103 - AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT
<b>103.01 Consideration of Proposals.</b> The Department will compare the proposals in terms of the summation of the products of the approximate quantities and the unit bid prices after the submittal date and time established in HIePRO. If a discrepancy occurs between the unit bid price and the bid price, the unit bid price shall govern.
The Department reserves the right to reject proposals, waive technicalities or advertise for new proposals, if the rejection, waiver, or new advertisement favors the Department.
<b>103.02 Award of Contract.</b> The award of contract, if it be awarded, will be made within 60 calendar days after the opening of bids, to the lowest responsible bidder whose proposal complies with all the requirements. The successful bidder will be notified by letter mailed to the address shown in its proposal, that its proposal has been accepted, and that it has been awarded the contract.
(1) Requirement for Award. To be eligible for award, the apparent low bidder will be contacted to submit copies of the documents listed below to demonstrate compliance with HRS Section 103D-310(c). The documents should be submitted to the Department as soon as possible. If a valid certificate/clearance is not submitted on a timely basis for award of a contract, a bidder otherwise responsive and responsible may not receive the award. See also Subsection 108.03 – Preconstruction Data Submittal.
(A) Tax Clearance. Pursuant to HRS Sections 103D-310(c), 103-53 and 103D-328, the successful bidder shall be required to submit a certified copy of its tax clearance issued by the Hawaii State Department of Taxation (DOTAX) and the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) to demonstrate its compliance with HRS Chapter 237. A tax clearance is valid for six (6) months from the most recent approval stamp date on the tax clearance and must be valid on the bid's first legal advertisement date or any date thereafter up to the bid opening date.
FORM A6, TAX CLEARANCE CERTIFICATE, is available at the following website:
http://www.hawaii.gov/tax/
To receive DOTAX Forms by fax or mail, phone

(808) 587-7572 or 1-800-222-7572.

The application for the Tax Clearance Certificate is the responsibility of the bidder and must be submitted directly to the DOTAX or IRS. The approved certificate may then be submitted to the Department.

(B) DLIR Certificate of Compliance. Pursuant to HRS Section 103D-310(c), the successful bidder shall be required to submit a copy (faxed copies are acceptable) of its approved certificate of compliance issued by the Hawaii State Department of Labor and Industrial Relations (DLIR) to demonstrate its compliance with unemployment insurance (HRS Chapter 383), workers' compensation (HRS Chapter 386), temporary disability insurance (HRS Chapter 392), and prepaid health care (HRS Chapter 393). The certificate is valid for six (6) months from the most recent approval stamp date on the certificate and must be valid on the bid's first legal advertisement date or any date thereafter up to the bid opening date. For certificates which receive a "pending" approval stamp, a DLIR approval stamp is required prior to the issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

FORM LIR#27, APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 3-122-112, HAR, is available at the following website:

## www.hawaii.gov/labor

More information is available by calling the DLIR Unemployment Insurance Division at (808) 586-8926.

Inquiries regarding the status of a LIR#27 Form may be made by calling the DLIR Disability Compensation Division at (808) 586-9200.

The application for the Certificate of Compliance is the responsibility of the bidder and must be submitted directly to the DLIR. The approved certificate may then be submitted to the Department.

- (C) DCCA Certificate of Good Standing. Pursuant to HRS Section 103D-310(c), the successful bidder shall be required to submit a copy (faxed copies are acceptable) of its approved Certificate of Good Standing issued by the Hawaii State Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs (DCCA), Business Registration Division (BREG) to demonstrate that it is either:
  - (1) Incorporated or organized under the laws of the State; or
  - **(2)** Registered to do business in the State as a separate branch or division that is capable of fully performing under the contract.

The Certificate of Good Standing is valid for six (6) months from the approval date on the certificate and must be valid on the bid's first legal advertisement date or any date thereafter up to the bid opening date. A Hawaii business that is a sole proprietorship, however, is not required to register with the BREG, and therefore not required to submit a Certificate of Good Standing. Bidders are advised that there are costs associated with registering and obtaining a Certificate of Good Standing from the DCCA.

To purchase a CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING, go to On-Line Services at the following website:

## www.hawaii.gov/dcca/

The application for the Certificate of Good Standing is the responsibility of the bidder and must be submitted directly to the DCCA. The approved certificate may then be submitted to the Department.

- **(D) Hawaii Compliance Express (HCE).** In lieu of the certificates referenced above, the bidder may make available proof of compliance through the Hawaii Compliance Express or any other designated certification process. Bidders may apply and register at the "Hawaii Compliance Express" website:
- **103.03** Cancellation of Award. The Department reserves the right to cancel the award of contracts before the execution of said contract by the parties. There will be no liability to the awardee and to other bidders.
- **103.04 Return of Proposal Guaranty.** The Department will return the proposal guaranties, except those of the three lowest bidders, after the Department checks the proposals. The Department will return the proposal guaranties of the remaining two lowest bidders not awarded the contract within five working days following the execution of the contract. The Department will return the successful bidder's proposal guaranty after the successful bidder furnishes a bond and executes the contract.
- 103.05 Requirement of Contract Bond. At the time of execution of the contract, the successful bidder shall file a good and sufficient performance bond and a payment bond on the forms furnished by the Department conditioned for the full and faithful performance of the contract in accordance with the terms and intent thereof and for the prompt payment to all others for all labor and material furnished by them to the bidder and used in the prosecution of the work provided for in the contract. The bonds shall be of an amount equal to 100 percent of the amount of the contract price and include 5 percent of the contract amount estimated to be required for extra work. The bidder shall limit the acceptable performance and payment bonds to the following:

136	(a)	Legal tender;
137	·	
138	(b)	Surety bond underwritten by a company licensed to issue bonds in the
139	State	of Hawaii; or
140		
141	(c)	A certificate of deposit; share certificate; cashier's check; treasurer's
142		, teller's check drawn by or a certified check accepted by and payable
143		mand to the State by a bank savings institution or credit union insured
144		e Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or the National Credit
145	Union	Administration (NCUA).
146		
147		<b>1.</b> The bidder may use these instruments only to a maximum of
148		\$100,000.
149		
150		<b>2.</b> If the required security or bond amount totals over \$100,000
151		more than one instrument not exceeding \$100,000 each and issued
152		by different financial institutions shall be acceptable.
153		
154		bonds shall also by the terms inure to the benefit of any and all persons
155		e claims for labor done or material furnished in the work so as to give
156	them a right	of action as contemplated by HRS Section 103D-324.
157	400.00 =	and the Contract T
158		ecution of the Contract. The contract bond and HRS Chapter 104 -
159	•	Certificate, similar to a copy of the same annexed hereto, shall
160		by the successful bidder and returned within ten days after the award
161 162		act or within such further time as the Director may allow after the eceived the contract for execution.
163	biddei iias i	eceived the contract for execution.
164	Th	e contract shall not bind the Department unless said parties execute
165		t and the Director of Finance endorses the bidder's certificate in
166		with HRS Section 103-39.
167	accordance	Will Till Coolin 100 00.
168	103.07 Fa	ilure to Execute Contract. Failure to execute the contract and file
169		onds shall be cause for the cancellation of the award in accordance
170	•	ion 103.06 - Execution of the Contract. Also, the Contractor forfeits the
171		aranty which becomes the property of the Department. This is not a
172		iquidated damages sustained by the State. The Department may then
173	•	to the next lowest responsible bidder or the Department may
174		and construct the work under contract."
175		
176		
177		
178		
179		END OF SECTION 103

## "108 - PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS

**108.01 Notice to Proceed (NTP).** A Notice To Proceed will be issued to the Contractor not more 3 working days after the contract certification date. The Engineer may suspend the contract before issuing the Notice To Proceed, in which case the Contractor's remedies are exclusively those set forth in Subsection 108.10 – Suspension of Work.

The Contractor shall be allowed up to 14 calendar days after the Notice to Proceed to begin physical work. The Start Work Date will be established when this period ends or on the actual day that physical work begins, whichever is first. Charging of Contract Time will begin on the Start Work Date. The Contractor shall notify the Engineer, in writing, at least five working days before beginning physical work.

In the event that the Contractor fails to start physical work within the time specified, the Engineer may terminate the contract in accordance with Subsection 108.11 – Termination of Contract for Cause.

During the period between the Notice to Proceed and the Start Work Date the Contractor should adjust work forces, equipment, schedules, and procure materials and required permits, prior to beginning physical work.

Any physical work done prior to the Start Work Date will be considered unauthorized work. If the Engineer does not direct that the unauthorized work be removed, it shall be paid for after the Start Work Date and only if it is acceptable.

In the event that the Engineer establishes, in writing, a Start Work Date that is beyond 14 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed date, the Contractor may submit a claim in accordance with, Subsection 107.15 – Disputes and Claims for increased labor and material costs which are directly attributable to the delay beyond the first 14 calendar days after the Notice to Proceed date.

The Contractor shall notify the Engineer at least 24 hours before restarting physical work after a suspension of work pursuant to Subsection 108.10 – Suspension of Work.

Once physical work has begun, the Contractor shall work expeditiously and pursue the work diligently to completion with the contract time. If a portion of the work is to be done in stages, the Contractor shall leave the area safe and usable for the user agency and the public at the end of each stage.

**108.02 Prosecution of Work.** Unless otherwise permitted by the Engineer, in writing, the Contractor shall not commence with physical construction unless sufficient materials and equipment are available for either continuous construction or completion of a specified portion of the work.

(1) List of the Superintendent and other Supervisory Personnel, and their contact information.

(2) Name of person(s) authorized to sign for the Contractor.

(3) Work Schedule including hours of operation.

**(4)** Initial Progress Schedule (See Subsection 108.06 – Progress Schedule).

**(5)** Water Pollution and Siltation Control Submittals, including Site-Specific Best Management Practice Plan.

(6) Solid Waste Disposal form.

(7) Tax Rates.

(8) Insurance Rates.

**(9)** Certificate of Insurance, satisfactory to the Engineer, indicating that the Contractor has in place all insurance coverage required by the contract documents.

(10) Schedule of agreed prices.

(11) List of suppliers.

(12) Traffic Control Plan, if applicable.

**108.04** Character and Proficiency of Workers. The Contractor shall at all times provide adequate supervision and sufficient labor and equipment for prosecuting the work to full completion in the manner and within the time required by the contract. The superintendent and all other representatives of the Contractor shall act in a civil and honest manner in all dealings with the Engineer, all other State officials and representatives, and the public, in connection with the work.

All workers shall possess the proper license, certification, job classification, skill, training, and experience necessary to properly perform the work assigned to them.

The Engineer may direct the removal of any worker(s) who does not carry out the assigned work in a proper and skillful manner or who is disrespectful, intemperate, violent, or disorderly. The worker shall be removed forthwith by the Contractor and will not work again without the written permission of the Engineer.

## 108.05 Contract Time.

(A) Calculation of Contract Time. When the contract time is on a working day basis, the total contract time allowed for the performance of the work will be the number of working days shown in the contract plus any additional working days authorized in writing as provided hereinafter. The count of elapsed working days to be charged against contract time, will begin from the Start Work Date and will continue consecutively to the date of Substantial Completion. When multiple shifts are used to perform the work, the State will not consider the hours worked over the normal eight working hours per day or night as an additional working day.

When the contract is on a calendar day basis, the total contract time allowed for the performance of the work will be the number of days shown in the contract plus any additional days authorized in writing as provided hereinafter. The count of elapsed days to be charged against contract time will begin from the Start Work Date and will continue consecutively to the date of Substantial Completion. The Engineer will exclude days elapsing between the orders of the Engineer to suspend work and resume work for suspensions not the fault of the Contractor.

**(B) Modifications of Contract Time.** Whenever the Contractor believes that an extension of contract time is justified, the Contractor shall serve written notice on the Engineer not more than five working days after the occurrence of the event that causes a delay or justifies a contract time extension. Contract time may be adjusted for the following reasons or events, but only if and to the extent the critical path has been affected:

(1) Changes in the Work, Additional Work, and Delays Caused by the State. If the Contractor believes that an extension of time is justified on account of any act or omission by the State, and is not adequately provided for in a field order or change order, it must request the additional time as provided above. At the request of the Engineer, the Contractor must show how the critical path will be affected and must also support the time extension request with schedules, as well as statements from its subcontractors, suppliers, or manufacturers, as necessary.

1	4	4		
	4			
l	4	5		
	4			
1	7	_		
1	4	7		
1	4	Q		
	4			
1	5	Λ		
1	ر -	v		
1	5	1		
	5			
l	5	3		
1	5	4		
l	5	5		
1	5	6		
I	5	/		
1	5	8		
I	5	9		
1	6 6	0		
1	6	1		
I	O	I		
1	6	2		
	6			
1	6	4		
	6			
1	6	6		
1	6	7		
l	6	8		
1	6	Q		
l	7	U		
	7			
	7			
1	7	3		
	7			
1	7	5		
1	7	6		
1	7	U		
1	7	7		
	7			
	7			
1	8	U		
l	8	l		
	8			
	8			
1	8	4		
1	×	5		
		6		
1	8			
1	8 8	7		
1	8 8	7		
1 1 1	8 8 8	7 8		
1 1 1	8 8 8	7 8 9		
1 1 1	8 8 8	7 8 9		

Claims for compensation for any altered or additional work will be determined pursuant to Subsection 104.02 – Changes.

Additional time to perform the extra work will be added to the time allowed in the contract without regard to the date the change directive was issued, even if the contract completion date has passed. A change requiring time issued after contract time has expired will not constitute an excusal or waiver of pre-existing Contractor delay.

- (2) Delay for Permits. For delays in the routine application and processing time required to obtain necessary permits, including permits to be obtained from State agencies, the Engineer may grant an extension provided that the permit takes longer than 30 days to acquire and the delay is not caused by the Contractor, and provided that as soon as the delay occurs, the Contractor notifies the Engineer in writing that the permits are not available. Permits required by the contract that take less than 30 days to acquire from the time which the appropriate documents are granted shall be acquired between Notice to Proceed and Start Work Date or accounted for in the contractor's progress schedule. Time extensions will be the exclusive relief granted on account of such delays.
- (3) Delays Beyond Contractor's Control. For delays caused by acts of God, a public enemy, fire, inclement weather days or adverse conditions resulting therefrom, earthquakes, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, labor disputes impacting the Contractor or the State, freight embargoes and other reasons beyond the Contractor's control, the Contractor may be granted an extension of time provided that:
  - (a) In the written notice of delay to the Engineer, the Contractor describes possible effects on the completion date of the contract. The description of delays shall:
    - **1.** State specifically the reason or reasons for the delay and fully explain in a detailed chronology how the delay affects the critical path.
    - **2.** Include copies of pertinent documentation to support the time extension request.
    - **3.** Cite the anticipated period of delay and the time extension requested.
    - **4.** State either that the above circumstances have been cleared and normal working conditions restored

192	as of a certain day or that the above circumstances
193 194	will continue to prevent completion of the project.
195	(b) The Contractor shall notify the Engineer in writing
196	when the delay ends. Time extensions will be the
197	exclusive relief granted and no additional compensation will
198	be paid the Contractor for such delays.
199	be paid the contractor for such delays.
200	(4) Delays in Delivery of Materials or Equipment. For
201	delays in delivery of materials or equipment, which occur as a
202	result of unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without fault
203	of the Contractor, its subcontractor(s) or supplier(s), time
204	extensions shall be the exclusive relief granted and no additional
205	compensation will be paid the Contractor on account of such delay.
206	The delay shall not exceed the difference between the originally
207	scheduled delivery date and the actual delivery date. The
208	Contractor may be granted an extension of time provided that it
209	complies with the following procedures:
210	
211	(a) The Contractor's written notice to the Engineer must
212	describe the delays and state the effect such delays may
213	have on the critical path.
214	
215	(b) The Contractor, if requested, must submit to the
216	Engineer within five days after a firm delivery date for the
217	material and equipment is established, a written statement
218	regarding the delay. The Contractor must justify the delay
219	as follows:
220	
221	1. State specifically all reasons for the delay.
222	Explain in a detailed chronology the effect of the delay
223	on the critical path.
224	
225	2. Submit copies of purchase order(s), factory
226	invoice(s), bill(s) of lading, shipping manifest(s),
227	delivery tag(s), and any other documents to support
228	the time extension request.
229	2 Cita the start and and data of the delay and the
230	3. Cite the start and end date of the delay and the
231	time extension requested.
232 233	(5) Delays for Suspension of Work. When the performance
233 234	of the work is totally suspended for one or more days (calendar or
23 <del>4</del> 235	working days, as appropriate) by order of the Engineer in
235 236	accordance with Subsections 108.10(A)(1), 108.10(A)(2), or
230 237	108.10(A)(5) the number of days from the effective date of the
238	Engineer's order to suspend operations to the effective date of the
239	Engineer's order to resume operations shall not be counted as
	50B-01-14
	00D-01-17

108-5

r5/28/20

240	contract time and the contract completion dat
241	During periods of partial suspensions of the wo
242	will be granted a time extension only if the
243	affects the critical path. If the Contracto
244	extension of time is justified for a partial susp
245	must request the extension in writing at least
246	before the partial suspension will affect the cri
247	progress. The Contractor must show how the
248	increased based on the status of the work and m
249	claim if requested, with statements from its su
250	suspension of work will not constitute a wai
251	Contractor delay.
252	Contractor dolay.
253	(6) Contractor Caused Delays. No tim
254	granted under the following circumstances:
255	granted under the following circumstances.
256	(a) Delays within the Contractor's co
250 257	the work caused by the Contractor, subc
258	or any combination thereof.
258 259	of any combination thereof.
260	( <b>b</b> ) Delays within the Contractor's c
261	materials and equipment caused by
262	
	subcontractor, supplier, or any comb
263	ordering, fabricating, and delivery.
264 265	(a) Delaya reguested for changes whi
265	(c) Delays requested for changes whi
266	critical path.
267	(d) Deleve severed by the failure of
268	(d) Delays caused by the failure of
269	make submittals in a timely manne
270	acceptance by the Engineer, such as but
271	drawings, descriptive sheets, material s
272	samples except as covered in Subsectio
273	108.05(B)(4).
274	(-) D             (-)
275	(e) Delays caused by the failure to
276	information and data in a timely manner in
277	order to obtain necessary permits related
278	46 = 11 ( 6 11 (1 ) 1 ) 11
279	(f) Failure to follow the procedure with
280	by contract to request a time extension.
281	
282	(g) Failure of the Contractor to provide
283	to support the time extension request.
284	
285	(7) Reduction in Time. If the State dele
286	portion of the work, an appropriate reduction o
287	be made in accordance with Subsection 104.02
	50B-01-14

te will be adjusted. ork, the Contractor partial suspension or believes that an ension of work, it five working days itical operation(s) in he critical path was nust also support its ubcontractors. iver of pre-existing

- e extension will be
  - ontrol in performing contractor, supplier,
  - ontrol in arrival of y the Contractor, ination thereof, in
  - ch do not affect the
  - the Contractor to er for review and t not limited to shop samples, and color n 108.05(B)(3) and
  - o submit sufficient n the proper form in to the work.
  - hin the time allowed
  - e evidence sufficient
- tes or modifies any of contract time may - Changes.

288	108.05
289	108.06 Progress Schedules.
290	
291	(A) Forms of Schedule. All schedules shall be submitted using the
292	specific computer program designated in the bid documents.   If no such
293	scheduling software program is designated, then all schedules shall be
294	submitted using the latest version of Microsoft Project by Microsoft or
295	approved equivalent software program.
296	
297	Schedule submittals shall be as follows:
298	
299	(1) For Contracts \$2,000,000 or less or For Contract Time
300	100 Working Days or 140 Calendar Days or Less. For
301	contracts of \$2,000,000 or less or for contract time of 100 working
302	days or 140 calendar days or less, the progress schedule will be a
303	Time Scaled Logic Diagram (TSLD). The Contractor shall submit
304	a TSLD submittal package meeting the following requirements and
305	having these essential and distinctive elements:
306	
307	(a) The major features of work, such as but not limited to
308	BMP installation, grubbing, roadway excavation, structure
309	excavation, structure construction, shown in the
310	chronological order in which the Contractor proposes to work
311	that feature or work and its location on the project. The
312	schedule shall account for normal inclement weather,
313	unusual soil or other conditions that may influence the
314	progress of the work, schedules, and coordination required
315	by any utility, off or on site fabrications, and other pertinent
316	factors that relate to progress;
317	
318	(b) All features listed or not listed in the contract
319	documents that the Contractor considers a controlling factor
320	for the timely completion of the contract work.
321	
322	(c) The time span and sequence of the activities or
323	events for each feature, and its interrelationship and
324	interdependencies in time and logic to other features in order
325	to complete the project.
326	
327	(d) The total anticipated time necessary to complete work
328	required by the contract.
329	(a) A characterised liction of suition into an adjute datas on
330	(e) A chronological listing of critical intermediate dates or
331	time periods for features or milestones or phases that can
332	affect timely completion of the project.
333	(f) Major activities related to the leastion on the project
334 335	<b>(f)</b> Major activities related to the location on the project.
JJJ	

336 337 338	(g) Non-construction activities, such as submittal and acceptance periods for shop drawings and material, procurement, testing, fabrication, mobilization, and
339	demobilization or order dates of long lead material.
340	
341	(h) Set schedule logic for out of sequence activities to
342	retain logic. In addition, open ends shall be non-critical.
343	(i) Chay target here for all activities
344	(i) Show target bars for all activities.
345 346	(i) Vertical and herizontal sight lines both major and
340 347	(j) Vertical and horizontal sight lines both major and minor shall be used as well as a separator line between
347 348	groups. The Engineer will determine frequency and style.
349	groups. The Engineer will determine frequency and style.
350	(k) The file name, print date, revision number, data and
351	project title and number shall be included in the title block.
352	project the and number shall be included in the the block.
353	(I) Have columns with the appropriate data in them for
354	activity ID, description, original duration, remaining duration,
355	early start, early finish, total float, percent complete,
356	resources. The resource column shall list who is
357	responsible for the work to be done in the activity. These
358	columns shall be to the left of the bar chart.
359	
360	(2) For Contracts Which Have A Contract Amount More
361	Than \$2,000,000 Or Having A Contract Time Of More Than 100
362	Working Days Or 140 Calendar Days. For contracts which
363	have a contract amount more than \$2,000,000 or contract time of
364	more than 100 working days or 140 calendar days, the Contractor
365	shall submit a Timed-Scaled Logic Diagram (TSLD) meeting the
366	following requirements and having these essential and distinctive
367	elements:
368	
369	(a) The information and requirements listed in Subsection
370	108.06(A)(1) – For Contracts \$2,000 or Less or For Contract
371	Time 100 Working Days or 140 Calendar Days or Less.
372	
373	(b) Additional reports and graphics available from the
374	software as requested by the Engineer.
375	
376	(c) Sufficient detail to allow at least weekly monitoring of
377	the Contractor and subcontractor's operations.
378	
379	(d) The time scaled schematic shall be on a calendar or
380	working days basis. What will be used shall be determined
381	by how the contract keeps track of time. It will be the
382	same. Plot the critical calendar dates anticipated.
383	
	50R-01-14

384	(e) Breakdown of activity, such as forming, placing
385	reinforcing steel, concrete pouring and curing, and stripping
386	in concrete construction. Indicate location of work to be
387	done in such detail that it would be easily determined where
388	work would be occurring within approximately 200 feet.
	work would be occurring within approximately 200 leet.
389	(f) I stoot start and finish dates for critical noth activities
390	(f) Latest start and finish dates for critical path activities.
391	(a) Identify assumptible substantiant and supplies and
392	(g) Identify responsible subcontractor, supplier, and
393	others for their respective activity.
394	
395	(h) No individual activity shall have duration of more than
396	20 calendar days unless requested and approved by the
397	Engineer.
398	
399	(i) All activities shall have work breakdown structure
400	codes and activity codes. The activity codes shall have
401	coding that incorporates information for phase, location,
402	who is responsible for doing work and type of operation and
403	activity description.
404	<b>)</b>
405	j) Incorporate all physical access and availability
406	restraints.
407	rootianto.
408	(B) Inspection and Testing. All schedules shall provide reasonable
409	time and opportunity for the Engineer to inspect and test each work
410	activity.
411	activity.
	(C) Engineer's Assentance of Progress Schodule. The submitted
412	(C) Engineer's Acceptance of Progress Schedule. The submittal
413	of, and the Engineer's receipt of any progress schedule, shall not be
414	deemed an agreement to modify any terms or conditions of the contract.
415	Any modifications to the contract terms and conditions that appear in or
416	may be inferred from an acceptable schedule will not be valid or
417	enforceable unless and until the Engineer exercises discretion to issue an
418	appropriate change order. Nor shall any submittal or receipt imply the
419	Engineer's approval of the schedule's breakdown, its individual elements,
420	any critical path that may be shown, nor shall it obligate the State to make
421	its personnel available outside normal working hours or the working hours
422	established by the Contract in order to accommodate such schedule.
423	The Contractor has the risk of all elements (whether or not shown) of the
424	schedule and its execution. No claim for additional compensation, time,
425	or both, shall be made by the Contractor or recognized by the Engineer
426	for delays during any period for which an acceptable progress schedule or
427	an updated progress schedule as required by Subsection 108.06(E) -
428	Contractor's Continuing Schedule Submittal Requirements had not been
429	submitted. Any acceptance or approval of the schedule shall be for
430	general format only and shall not be deemed an agreement by the State
431	that the construction means, methods, and resources shown on the

432	schedule will result in work that conforms to the contract requirements or
433	that the sequences or durations indicated are feasible.
434	
435	(D) Initial Progress Schedule. The Contractor shall submit an initial
436	progress schedule. The initial progress schedule shall consist of the
437	following:
438	
439	(1) Four sets of the TSLD schedule.
440	
441	(2) All the software files and data to re-create the TSLD in a
442	computerized software format as specified by the Engineer.
443	
444	(3) A listing of equipment that is anticipated to be used on the
445	project. Including the type, size, make, year of manufacture,
446	and all information necessary to identify the equipment in the
447	Rental Rate Blue Book for Construction Equipment.
448	Tremai Trate Blae Beer for Construction Equipment.
449	(4) An anticipated manpower requirement graph plotting
450	contract time and total manpower requirement. This may be
451	superimposed over the payment graph.
452	superimposed over the payment graph.
453	(5) A Method Statement that is a detailed narrative describing
453 454	· ·
	the work to be done and the method by which the work shall be
455	accomplished for each major activity. A major activity is an
456	activity that:
457	(a) Llos a duration languar than five days
458	(a) Has a duration longer than five days.
459	
460	<b>(b)</b> Is a milestone activity.
461	
462	(c) Is a contract item that exceeds \$10,000 on the
463	contract cost proposal.
464	
465	(d) Is a critical path activity.
466	
467	<b>(e)</b> Is an activity designated as such by the Engineer.
468	
469	Each Method Statement shall include the following items
470	needed to fulfill the schedule:
471	
472	(a) Quantity, type, make, and model of equipment.
473	
474	<b>(b)</b> The manpower to do the work, specifying worker
475	classification.
476	
477	(c) The production rate per eight hour day, or the working
478	hours established by the contract documents needed to
479	meet the time indicated on the schedule. If the production 50B-01-14

108-10

r5/28/20

480	rate is not for eight hours, the number of working hours shall
481	be indicated.
482	
483	(6) Two sets of color time-scaled project evaluation and review
484	technique charts ("PERT") using the activity box template of Logic –
485	Early Start or such other template designated by the Engineer.
486	
487	If the contract documents establish a sequence or order for the
488	work, the initial progress schedule shall conform to such sequence or
489	order.
490	
491	(E) Contractor's Continuing Schedule Submittal Requirements.
492	After the acceptance of the initial TSLD and when construction starts, the
493	Contractor shall submit four plotted progress schedules, two PERT
494	charts, and reports on all construction activities every two weeks (bi-
495	weekly). This scheduled bi-weekly submittal shall also include an
496	updated version of the project schedule in a computerized software format
497	as specified by the Engineer. The submittal shall have all the
498	information needed to re-create that time period's TSLD plot and reports.
499	The bi-weekly submittal shall include, but not limited to, an update of
500	activities based on actual durations, all new activities and any changes in
501	duration or start or finish dates of any activity.
502	duration of clare of limbil dates of any detivity.
503	The Contractor shall submit with every update, in report form
504	acceptable to the Engineer, a list of changes to the progress schedule
505	since the previous schedule submittal. The Engineer may change the
506	frequency of the submittal requirements but may not require a submittal of
507	the schedule to be more than once a week. The Engineer may
508	decrease the frequency of the submittal of the bi-weekly schedule.
509	decrease the frequency of the submittal of the bi-weekly schedule.
510	The Contractor shall submit updates of the anticipated work
510	completion graph, equipment listing, manpower requirement graph or
512	method statement when requested by the Engineer. The Contractor
513	shall submit such updates within 4 calendar days from the date of the
514	request by the Engineer.
515	The Foreign control of the latest control of the co
516	The Engineer may withhold progress payment until the Contractor
517	is in compliance with all schedule update requirements
518	/=> ==
519	<b>(F) Float.</b> All float appearing on a schedule is a shared commodity.
520	Float does not belong to or exist for the exclusive use or benefit of either
521	the State or the Contractor. The State or the Contractor has the
522	opportunity to use available float until it is depleted. Float has no
523	monetary value.
524	
525	(G) Scheduled Meetings. The Contractor shall meet on a bi-weekly
526	basis with the Engineer to review the progress schedule. The

Contractor shall have someone attending the meeting that can answer all questions on the TSLD and other schedule related submittals.

529530531

532

533

534

535

536537

538539

540

527

528

Accelerated Schedule; Early Completion. If the Contractor (H) submits an accelerated schedule (shorter than the contract time), the Engineer's review and acceptance of an accelerated schedule does not constitute an agreement or obligation by the State to modify the contract The Contractor is solely responsible for and time or completion date. shall accept all risks and any delays, other than those that can be directly and solely attributable to the State, that may occur during the work, until the contract completion date. The contract time or completion date is established for the benefit of the State and cannot be changed without an appropriate change order or Substantial Completion granted by the State. The State may accept the work before the completion date is established, but is not obligated to do so.

541542543

544

545

546

547

548

If the TSLD indicates an early completion of the project, the Contractor shall, upon submittal of the schedule, cooperate with the Engineer in explaining how it will be achieved. In addition, the Contractor shall submit the above explanation in writing which shall include the State's part, if any, in achieving the early completion date. Early completion of the project shall not rely on changes to the Contract Documents unless approved by the Engineer.

549550551

552

553554

(I) Contractor Responsibilities. The Contractor shall promptly respond to any inquiries from the Engineer regarding any schedule submission. The Contractor shall adjust the schedule to address directives from the Engineer and shall resubmit the TSLD package to the Engineer until the Engineer finds it acceptable.

555556557

558

559560

The Contractor shall perform the work in accordance with the submitted TSLD. The Engineer may require the Contractor to provide additional work forces and equipment to bring the progress of the work into conformance with the TSLD at no increase in contract price or contract time whenever the Engineer determines that the progress of the work does not insure completion within the specified contract time.

561562563

564

565

566

567568

569

108.06

**108.07 Weekly Meeting.** In addition to the bi-weekly schedule meetings, the Contractor shall be available to meet once a week with the Engineer at the time and place as determined by the Engineer to discuss the work and its progress including but not limited to, the progress of the project, potential problems, coordination of work, submittals, erosion control reports, etc. The Contractor's personnel attending shall have the authority to make decisions and answer questions.

570571572

573

574

The Contractor shall bring to weekly meetings a detailed work schedule showing the next three weeks' work. Number of copies of the detailed work schedule to be submitted will be determined by the Engineer. The three-week

575 576	schedule is in addition to the TSLD and shall in no way be considered as a
576 577	substitute for the TSLD or vice versa. The three-week schedule shall show:
578	(a) All construction events, traffic control and BMP related activities in
579	such detail that the Engineer will be able to determine at what location and
580	type of work will be done for any day for the next three weeks. This is
581	for the State to use to plan its manpower requirements for that time period
582	The state of the plant to the state of the s
583	(b) The duration of all events and delays.
584	(4)
585	(c) The critical path clearly marked in red or marked in a manner that
586	makes it clearly distinguishable from other paths and is acceptable to the
587	Engineer.
588	ŭ
589	(d) Critical submittals and requests for information (RFI's).
590	(**)
591	(e) The project title, project number, date created, period the schedule
592	covers, Contractor's name and creator of the schedule on each page.
593	
594	Two days prior to each weekly meeting, the Contractor shal
595	submit a list of outstanding submittals, RFIs and issues that require
596	discussion.
597	
598	108.08 Liquidated Damages for Failure to Complete the Work or Portions
599	of the Work on Time. The actual amount of damages resulting from the
600	Contractor's failure to complete the contract in a timely manner is difficult to
601	accurately determine. Therefore the amount of such damages shall be
602	liquidated damages as set forth herein and in the special provisions. The State
603	may, at its discretion, deduct the amount from monies due or that may become
604	due under the contract.
605	
606	When the Contractor fails to reach substantial completion of the work for
607	which liquidated damages are specified, within the time or times fixed in the
608	contract or any extension thereof, in addition to all other remedies for breach
609	that may be available to the State, the Contractor shall pay liquidated damages
610	to the State, in the amount of \$ per working day.
611	
612	
613	(A) Liquidated Damages Upon Termination. If the State
614	terminates on account of Contractor's default, liquidated damages may be
615	charged against the defaulting Contractor and its surety until fina
616	completion of work.
617	·
618	(B) Liquidated Damages for Failure to Complete the Punchlist
619	The Contractor shall complete the work on any punchlist created after the
620	pre-final inspection, within the contract time or any extension thereof.
62.1	•

622	When the Contractor fails to complete the work on such punchlist
623	within the contract time or any extension thereof, the Contractor shall pay
624	liquidated damages to the State of 20 percent of the amount of liquidated
625	damages established for failure to substantially complete the work within
626	contract time. Liquidated damages shall not be assessed for the period
627	between:
628	
629	(1) Notice from the Contractor that the project is substantially
630	complete and the time the punchlist is delivered to the Contractor.
631	
632	(2) The date of the completion of punchlist as determined by the
633	Engineer and the date of the successful final inspection, and
634	
635	(3) The date of the Final Inspection that results in Substantial
636	Completion and the receipt by the Contractor of the written notice of
637	Substantial Completion.
638	•
639	(C) Actual Damages Recoverable If Liquidated Damages Deemed
640	Unenforceable. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction holds that
641	any liquidated damages assessed pursuant to this contract are
642	unenforceable, the State will be entitled to recover its actual damages for
643	Contractor's failure to complete the work, or any designated portion of the
644	work within the time set by the contract.
645	108.08
646	108.09 Rental Fees for Unauthorized Lane Closure or Occupancy.
647	addition to all other remedies available to the State for Contractor's breach of the
648	terms of the contract, the Engineer will assess the rental fees in the amount of
649	\$500 for every one-to fifteen-minute increment for each roadway lane closed to
650	public use or occupied beyond the time periods authorized in the contract or by
651	the Engineer. The maximum amount assessed per day shall be \$5,000. The
652	State may, at its discretion, deduct the amount from monies due or that may
653	become due under the contract. The rental fee may be waived in whole or part
654	if the Engineer determines that the unauthorized period of lane closure or
655	occupancy was due to factors beyond the control of the Contractor. Equipment
656	breakdown is not a cause to waive liquidated damages.
657	breakdown to not a badde to waive liquidated damages.
658	108.10 Suspension of Work.
659	100.10 Odspension of Work.
660	(A) Suspension of Work. The Engineer may, by written order,
661	suspend the performance of the work, either in whole or in part, for such
662	periods as the Engineer may deem necessary, for any cause, including
663	but not limited to:
664	but not innited to.
665	(1) Weather or soil conditions considered unsuitable for
666	(1) Weather or soil conditions considered unsuitable for prosecution of the work.
	prosecution of the work.
667 668	(2) Whenever a redecion that may affect the work is deemed
669	(2) Whenever a redesign that may affect the work is deemed
009	necessary by the Engineer.
	50B-01-14

108-14

r5/28/20

- (3) Unacceptable noise or dust arising from the construction even if it does not violate any law or regulation.
- (4) Failure on the part of the Contractor to:
  - **(a)** Correct conditions unsafe for the general public or for the workers.
  - (b) Carry out orders given by the Engineer.
  - **(c)** Perform the work in strict compliance with the provisions of the contract.
  - (d) Provide adequate supervision on the jobsite.
- (5) The convenience of the State.
- (B) Partial and Total Suspension. Suspension of work on some but not all items of work shall be considered a "partial suspension". Suspension of work on all items shall be considered "total suspension". The period of suspension shall be computed from the date set out in the written order for work to cease until the date of the order for work to resume.
- Reimbursement to Contractor. In the event that the Contractor is ordered by the Engineer in writing as provided herein to suspend all work under the contract for the reasons specified in Subsections 108.10(A)(2), 108.10(A)(3), or 108.10(A)(5) of the "Suspension of Work" paragraph, the Contractor may be reimbursed for actual direct costs incurred on work at the jobsite, as authorized in writing by the Engineer, including costs expended for the protection of the work. An allowance of 5 percent for indirect categories of delay costs will be paid on any reimbursed direct costs, including extended branch and home-office overhead and delay impact costs. No allowance will be made for anticipated profits. Payment for equipment which is ordered to standby during such suspension of work shall be made as described in Subsection 109.06(H) - Idle and Standby Equipment.
- **(D) Cost Adjustment.** If the performance of all or part of the work is suspended for reasons beyond the control of the Contractor except an adjustment shall be made for any increase in cost of performance of this contract (excluding profit) necessarily caused by such suspension, and the contract modified in writing accordingly.

However, no adjustment to the contract price shall be made for any suspension, delay, or interruption:

718	(1) For weather related conditions.
719	
720	(2) To the extent that performance would have been so
721	suspended, delayed, or interrupted by any other cause, including
722	the fault or negligence of the Contractor.
723	
724	(3) Or, for which an adjustment is provided for or excluded
725	under any other provision of this Contract.
726	
727	(E) Claims for Adjustment. Any adjustment in contract price made
728	shall be determined in accordance with Subsections 104.02 - Changes
729	and 104.06 – Methods of Price Adjustment.
730	•
731	Any claims for such compensation shall be filed in writing with the
732	Engineer within 30 days after the date of the order to resume work or the
733	claim will not be considered. The claim shall conform to the
734	requirements of Subsection 107.15(D) – Making of a Claim. The
735	Engineer will take the claim under consideration, may make such
736	investigations as are deemed necessary and will be the sole judge as to
737	the equitability of the claim. The Engineer's decision will be final.
738	
739	(F) No Adjustment. No provision of this clause shall entitle the
740	Contractor to any adjustments for delays due to failure of its surety, the
741	cancellation or expiration of any insurance coverage required by the
742	contract documents, for suspensions made at the request of the
743	Contractor, for any delay required under the contract, for suspensions,
744	either partial or whole, made by the Engineer under Subsection
745	108.10(A)(4) of the "Suspension of work" paragraph.
746	108.10
747	108.11 Termination of Contract for Cause.
748	
749	(A) Default. If the Contractor refuses or fails to perform the work, or
750	any separable part thereof, with such diligence as will assure its
751	completion within the time specified in this contract, or any extension
752	thereof, or commits any other material breach of this contract, and further
753	fails within seven days after receipt of written notice from the Engineer to
754	commence and continue correction of the refusal or failure with diligence
755	and promptness, the Engineer may, by written notice to the Contractor,
756	declare the Contractor in breach and terminate the Contractor's right to
757	proceed with the work or the part of the work as to which there has been
758	delay or other breach of contract. In such event, the State may take
759	over the work, perform the same to completion, by contract or otherwise,
760	and may take possession of, and utilize in completing the work, the
761	materials, appliances, and plants as may be on the site of the work and
762	necessary therefore. Whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed
763	with the work is terminated, the Contractor and the Contractor's sureties

764 765

refusal or failure to complete the work within the specified time.

shall be liable for any damage to the State resulting from the Contractor's

772

778 779 780

777

786

781

795 796 797

800 801 802

803

798

799

804 805 806

807 808 809

810 811 812

Additional Rights and Remedies. The rights and remedies of the State provided in this contract are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law.

(C) Costs and Charges. All costs and charges incurred by the State, together with the cost of completing the work under contract, will be deducted from any monies due or which would or might have become due to the Contractor had it been allowed to complete the work under the If such expense exceeds the sum which would have been contract. payable under the contract, then the Contractor and the surety shall be liable and shall pay the State the amount of the excess.

In case of termination, the Engineer will limit any payment to the Contractor to the part of the contract satisfactorily completed at the time of Payment will not be made until the work has satisfactorily termination. been completed and all required documents, including the tax clearance required by Subsection 109.11 - Final Payment are submitted by the Contractor. Termination shall not relieve the Contractor or Surety from liability for liquidated damages.

(D) **Erroneous Termination for Cause.** lf. after notice of termination of the Contractor's right to proceed under this section, it is determined for any reason that good cause did not exist to allow the State to terminate as provided herein, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as, and the relief afforded the Contractor shall be limited to. the provisions contained in Subsection 108.12 – Termination for Convenience.

#### 108.12 **Termination For Convenience.**

- Terminations. The Director may, when the interests of the State so require, terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the convenience of the State. The Director will give written notice of the termination to the Contractor specifying the part of the contract terminated and when termination becomes effective.
- (B) Contractor's Obligations. The Contractor shall incur no further obligations in connection with the terminated work and on the date set in the notice of termination the Contractor shall stop work to the extent The Contractor shall also terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts as they relate to the terminated work. The Contractor shall settle the liabilities and claims arising out of the termination of subcontracts and orders connected with the terminated work subject to the State's approval. The Engineer may direct the Contractor to assign the and interest under terminated orders or Contractor's right, title, subcontracts to the State. The Contractor must still complete the work

813 814		minated by the notice of termination and may incur obligations as sary to do so.
815	(C)	Dight to Construction and Coods The Engineer may require
816	` '	Right to Construction and Goods. The Engineer may require
817		ntractor to transfer title and to deliver to the State in the manner and
818	to the e	extent directed by the Engineer, the following:
819		(4) Any completed work
820		(1) Any completed work.
821		(0) A
822		(2) Any partially completed construction, goods, materials,
823		parts, tools, dies, jigs, fixtures, drawings, information, and
824		contract rights (hereinafter called "construction material") that the
825		Contractor has specifically produced or specially acquired for the
826		performance of the terminated part of this contract.
827		(2) The Contractor shall protect and property all property in the
828		(3) The Contractor shall protect and preserve all property in the
829 830		possession of the Contractor in which the State has an interest. If
		the Engineer does not elect to retain any such property, the Contractor shall use its best efforts to sell such property and
831 832		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
		construction materials for the State's account in accordance with
833		the standards of HRS Chapter 490:2-706.
834 835	<b>(D)</b>	Componentian
	(D)	Compensation.
836 837		(1) The Contractor shall submit a termination claim specifying
83 <i>1</i> 838		(1) The Contractor shall submit a termination claim specifying the amounts due because of the termination for convenience
839		
840		together with cost or pricing data, submitted to the extent required by HAP Subspaces 15. Chapter 3 122. If the Contractor fails to
841		by HAR Subchapter 15, Chapter 3-122. If the Contractor fails to file a termination claim within one year from the effective date of
842		termination, the Engineer may pay the Contractor, if at all, an
843		
844		amount set in accordance with Subsection 108.12(D)(3).
845		(2) The Engineer and the Contractor may agree to a settlement
846		provided the Contractor has filed a termination claim supported by
847		cost or pricing data submitted as required and that the settlement
848		does not exceed the total contract price plus settlement costs
849		reduced by payments previously made by the State, the proceeds
850		of any sales of construction, supplies, and construction materials
851		under Subsection 108.12(C)(3), and the proportionate contract
852		price of the work not terminated.
853		price of the work not terminated.
854		(3) Absent complete agreement, the Engineer will pay the
855		Contractor the following amounts less any payments previously
856		made under the contract:
857		made ander the contract.
858		(a) The cost of all contract work performed prior to the
859		effective date of the notice of termination work plus a 5
860		percent markup on the actual direct costs, including
		50B-01-14
		108-18 r5/28/20

362 363	amounts paid to subcontractor, less amo paid for completed portions of such	•
303	however, that if it appears that the Cont	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
364	sustained a loss if the entire contract	
36 <del>4</del> 365	completed, no markup shall be allowed o	
365 366	amount of compensation shall be reduced to	
360 367	anticipated rate of loss. No ant	
367 868	consequential damage will be due or paid.	icipated profit of
369	consequential damage will be due of paid.	
30 <i>)</i> 370	(b) Subcontractors shall be paid a mar	kun of 10 nercent
370 371	on their direct job costs incurred to the di	•
371	No anticipated profit or consequential dam	
372	paid to any subcontractor. These costs	•
37 <i>3</i> 374	payments made to the Contractor for	
37 <del>4</del> 375	during the contract period.	Subcontract Work
373 376	during the contract period.	
370 377	(c) The total sum to be paid the Co	entractor shall not
377 878	exceed the total contract price reduced by	
379	sales of construction supplies, and constru	•
380	sales of construction supplies, and constru	otion materials.
381	(4) Cost claimed, agreed to, or established	hy the State shall
382	be in accordance with HAR Chapter 3-123.	by the otate shan
383	be in accordance with that chapter of 120.	
	108.13 Pre-Final and Final Inspections.	
385	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
386	(A) Inspection Requirements. Before the Engir	neer undertakes a
387	final inspection of any work, a pre-final inspection must	
388	The Contractor shall notify the Engineer that the w	
389	substantial completion and is ready for pre-final inspection	
390		JII.
370		л.
	(B) Pre-Final Inspection. Before notifying the	
391	<b>(B) Pre-Final Inspection.</b> Before notifying the work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor	Engineer that the
891 892	work has reached substantial completion, the Contracto	Engineer that the or shall inspect the
391	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as
891 892 893	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the fol	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as
891 892 893 894	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as
891 892 893 894 895	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents
391 392 393 394 395 396	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the fol	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents
391 392 393 394 395 396	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:  (1) All written guarantees required by the contractor.	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents
391 392 393 394 395 396 397	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the following as applicable to the work:  (1) All written guarantees required by the contractor.  (2) Two accepted final field-posted drawing	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents
891 892 893 894 895 896 897 898 899	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:  (1) All written guarantees required by the contractor.	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents
391 392 393 394 395 396 397 398	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:  (1) All written guarantees required by the contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:  (2) Two accepted final field-posted drawing Section 648 – Field-Posted Drawings;	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents ract.
391 392 393 394 395 396 397 398 399 900	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:  (1) All written guarantees required by the contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:  (2) Two accepted final field-posted drawing Section 648 – Field-Posted Drawings;	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents ract.
391 392 393 394 395 396 397 398 399 900 901	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:  (1) All written guarantees required by the contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:  (2) Two accepted final field-posted drawing Section 648 – Field-Posted Drawings;  (3) Complete weekly certified payroll records	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents ract.
391 392 393 394 395 396 397 398 399 900 901 902	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the folias applicable to the work:  (1) All written guarantees required by the contractor of the contractor o	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents ract.  s as specified in for the Contractor
391 392 393 394 395 396 397 398 399 900 901 902 903	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the folias applicable to the work:  (1) All written guarantees required by the contractor of the contractor o	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents ract.  s as specified in for the Contractor
891 892 893 894 895 896 897 898 899 900 901 902 903 904	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:  (1) All written guarantees required by the contractor of the contractor o	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents ract.  s as specified in for the Contractor ection.
391 392 393 394 395 396 397 398 399 900 901 902 903 904 905	work has reached substantial completion, the Contractor project and test all installed items with all of its appropriate. The Contractor shall also submit the fol as applicable to the work:  (1) All written guarantees required by the contractor of the contractor o	Engineer that the or shall inspect the subcontractors as lowing documents ract.  s as specified in for the Contractor ection.

909	(6) Certificate of Soil and Wood Treatments.
910	(=) O (:: ( ())( ( O ( O)) : (:
911	(7) Certificate of Water System Chlorination.
912	(0) Contificate of Elevation Insurantian Dellar and Decayor Dina
913	(8) Certificate of Elevator Inspection, Boiler and Pressure Pipe
914	Inspection.
915	
916	(9) Maintenance Service Contract and two copies of a list of all
917	equipment installed.
918	
919	(10) Current Tax clearance. The contractor will be required to
920	submit an additional tax clearance certificate when the final
921	payment is made.
922	
923	(11) And any other final items and submittals required by the
924	contract documents.
925	
926	<b>(C) Procedure.</b> When in compliance with the above requirements,
927	the Contractor shall notify the Engineer in writing that the project has
928	reached substantial completion and is ready for pre-final inspection.
929	
930	The Engineer will then make a preliminary determination as to
931	whether or not the project is substantially complete and ready for pre-final
932	inspection. The Engineer may, in writing, postpone until after the pre-
933	final inspection the Contractor's submittal of any of the items listed in
934	Subsection 108.13(B) – Pre-Final Inspection, herein, if in the Engineer's
935	discretion it is in the interest of the State to do so.
936	
937	If, in the opinion of the Engineer, the project is not substantially
938	complete, the Engineer will provide the Contractor a punchlist of specific
939	deficiencies in writing which must be corrected or finished before the work
940	will be ready for a pre-final inspection. The Engineer may add to or
941	otherwise modify this punchlist from time to time. The Contractor shall
942	take immediate action to correct the deficiencies and must repeat all steps
943	described above including written notification that the work is ready for
944	pre-final inspection.
945	pro mise map o sustin
946	After the Engineer is satisfied that the project appears substantially
947	complete a final inspection shall be scheduled within ten working days
948	after receipt of the Contractor's latest letter of notification that the project is
949	ready for final inspection.
950	reday for infar mopeoution.
951	If, as a result of the pre-final inspection, the Engineer determines
952	the work is not substantially complete, the Engineer will inform the
953	Contractor in writing as to specific deficiencies which must be corrected
953 954	before the work will be ready for another pre-final inspection.
955	Engineer finds the work is substantially complete but finds deficiencies
955 956	that must be corrected before the work is ready for final inspection, the
750	
	50B-01-14 409-20 **5/29/20
	108-20 r5/28/20

Engineer will prepare in writing and deliver to the Contractor a punchlist describing such deficiencies.

At any time before final acceptance, the Engineer may revoke the determination of substantial completion if the Engineer finds that it was not warranted and will notify the Contractor in writing the reasons therefore together with a description of the deficiencies negating the declaration.

When the date of substantial completion has been determined by the State, liquidated damages for the failure to complete the punchlist, if due to the State will be assessed in pursuant to Subsection 108.08(B) - Liquidated Damages for Failure to Complete the Punchlist.

(D) Punchlist; Clean Up and Final Inspection. Upon receiving a punchlist after pre-final inspection, the Contractor shall promptly devote all required time, labor, equipment, materials and incidentals to correct and remedy all punchlist deficiencies. The Engineer may add to or otherwise modify this punchlist until substantial completion of the project.

Before final inspection of the work, the Contractor shall clean all ground occupied by the Contractor in connection with the work of all rubbish, excess materials, temporary structures and equipment, shall remove all graffiti and defacement of the work and all parts of the work and the worksite must be left in a neat and presentable condition to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

Final inspection will occur within ten working days after the Contractor notifies the Engineer in writing that all punchlist deficiencies remaining after the pre-final inspection have been completed and the Engineer concurs. If the Engineer determines that deficiencies still remain at the final inspection, the work will not be accepted and the Engineer will notify the Contractor, in writing, of the deficiencies which shall be corrected and the steps above repeated.

If the Contractor fails to correct the deficiencies and complete the work by the established or agreed date, the State may correct the deficiencies by whatever method it deems appropriate and deduct the cost from any payments due the Contractor.

### 108.14 Substantial Completion and Final Acceptance.

(A) Substantial Completion. When the Engineer finds that the Contractor has satisfactorily completed all work for the project in compliance with the contract, with the exception of the planting period and the plant establishment period, the Engineer will notify the Contractor, in writing, of the project's substantial completion, effective as of the date of the final inspection. The substantial completion date shall determine end

of contract time and relieve contractor of any additional accumulation of liquidated damages for failure to complete the punchlist.

**(B) Final Acceptance.** When the Engineer finds that the Contractor has satisfactorily completed all contract work in compliance with the contract including all plant establishment requirements, and all the materials have been accepted by the State, the Engineer will issue a Final Acceptance Letter. The Final Acceptance date shall determine the commencement of all guaranty periods subject to Subsection 108.16 – Contractor's Responsibility for Work; Risk of Loss or Damage.

**108.15 Use of Structure or Improvement.** The State has the right to use the structure, equipment, improvement, or any part thereof, at any time after it is considered by the Engineer as available. In the event that the structure, equipment or any part thereof is used by the State before final acceptance, the Contractor is not relieved of its responsibility to protect and preserve all the work until final acceptance.

**108.15** 

**108.16 Contractor's Responsibility for Work; Risk of Loss or Damage.**1023 Until the written notice of final acceptance has been received, the Contractor
1024 shall take every precaution against loss or damage to any part of the work by the
1025 action of the elements or from any other cause whatsoever, whether arising from
1026 the performance or from the non-performance of the work. The Contractor

the performance or from the non-performance of the work. The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore and make good all loss or damage to any portion of the work resulting from any cause before its receipt of the written notice of final acceptance and shall bear the risk and expense thereof.

The risk of loss or damage to the work from any hazard or occurrence that may or may not be covered by a builder's risk policy is that of the Contractor and Surety, unless such risk of loss is placed elsewhere by express language in the contract documents.

#### 108.17 Guarantee of Work.

 (1) Regardless of, and in addition to, any manufacturers' warranties, all work and equipment shall be guaranteed by the Contractor against defects in materials, equipment or workmanship for one year from the date of final acceptance or as otherwise specified in the contract documents.

(2) When the Engineer determines that repairs or replacements of any guaranteed work and equipment is necessary due to materials, equipment, or workmanship which are inferior, defective, or not in accordance with the terms of the contract, the Contractor shall, at no increase in contract price or contract time, and within five working days of receipt of written notice from the State, commence to all of the following:

1051	(a) Correct all noted defects and make replacements, as
1052	directed by the Engineer, in the equipment and work.
1053	(I) D
1054	(b) Repair or replace to new or pre-existing condition any
1055	damages resulting from such defective materials, equipment or
1056	installation thereof.
1057	
1058	(3) The State will be entitled to the benefit of all manufacturers and
1059	installers warranties that extend beyond the terms of the Contractor's
1060	guaranty regardless of whether or not such extended warranty is required
1061	by the contract documents. The Contractor shall prepare and submit all
1062	documents required by the providers of such warranties to make them
1063	effective, and submit copies of such documents to the Engineer. If an
1064	available extended warranty cannot be transferred or assigned to the
1065	State as the ultimate user, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer who
1066	may direct that the warranted items be acquired in the name of the State
1067	as purchaser.
1068	
1069	(4) If a defect is discovered during a guarantee period, all repairs and
1070	corrections to the defective items when corrected shall be guaranteed for
1071	a new duration equal to the original full guarantee period. The running
1072	of the guarantee period shall be suspended for all other work affected by
1073	any defect. The guarantee period for all other work affected by any such
1074	defect shall restart for its remaining duration upon confirmation by the
1075	Engineer that the deficiencies have been repaired or remedied.
1076	
1077	(5) Nothing in this section is intended to limit or affect the State's rights
1078	and remedies arising from the discovery of latent defects in the work after
1079	the expiration of any guarantee period.
1080	
1081	108.18 No Waiver of Legal Rights. The following will not operate or be
1082	considered as a waiver of any portion of the contract, or any power herein
1083	reserved, or any right to damages provided herein or by law:
1084	
1085	(1) Any payment for, or acceptance of, the whole or any part of the
1086	work.
1087	
1088	(2) Any extension of time.
1089	
1090	(3) Any possession taken by the Engineer.
1091	
1092	A waiver of any notice requirement or of any noncompliance with the
1093	contract will not be held to be a waiver of any other notice requirement or any
1094	other noncompliance with the contract.
1095	
1096	108.19 Final Settlement of Contract.

1098	(A) Closii	<b>ng Requirements.</b> The contract will be considered settled
1099	after the proj	ect acceptance date and when the following items have been
1100	satisfactorily	submitted, where applicable:
1101		
1102	(1)	All written guarantees required by the contract.
1103		
1104	(2)	Complete and certified weekly payrolls for the Contractor
1105	and its	s subcontractor's.
1106		
1107	(3)	Certificate of plumbing and electrical inspection.
1108		
1109	(4)	Certificate of building occupancy.
1110		
1111	(5)	Certificate for soil treatment and wood treatment.
1112		
1113	(6)	Certificate of water system chlorination.
1114		
1115	(7)	Certificate of elevator inspection, boiler and pressure pipe
1116	install	ation.
1117		
1118	(8)	Tax clearance.
1119		
1120	(9)	All other documents required by the Contract or by law.
1121		
1122	` '	re to Meet Closing Requirements. The Contractor shall
1123		olicable closing requirements within 60 days from the date of
1124	•	ptance or the agreed to Punchlist complete date. Should
1125		or fail to comply with these requirements, the Engineer may
1126	terminate the	e contract for cause."
1127		
1128		
1129		
1130		END OF SECTION 108
1131		

# "SECTION 209 - TEMPORARY WATER POLLUTION, DUST, AND EROSION CONTROL

**209.01 Description.** This section describes the following:

(A) Including detailed plans, diagrams, and written Site-Specific Best Management Practices (BMP); constructing, maintaining, and repairing temporary water pollution, dust, and erosion control measures at the project site, including local material sources, work areas and haul roads; removing and disposing hazardous wastes; control of fugitive dust (defined as uncontrolled emission of solid airborne particulate matter from any source other than combustion); and complying with applicable State and Federal permit conditions.

**(B)** Work associated with construction stormwater, dewatering, and hydrotesting activities and complying with conditions of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit(s) authorizing discharges associated with construction stormwater, dewatering, and hydrotesting activities.

**(C)** Potential pollutant identification and mitigation measures are listed in Appendix A for use in the development of the Contractor's Site-Specific BMP.

Requirements of this section also apply to construction support activities including concrete or asphalt batch plants, rock crushing plants, equipment staging yards/areas, material storage areas, excavated material disposal areas, and borrow areas located outside the State Right-of-Way. For areas serving multiple construction projects, or operating beyond the completion of the construction project in which it supports, the Contractor shall be responsible for securing the necessary permits, clearances, and documents, and following the conditions of the permits and clearances, at no cost to the State.

**209.02 Materials.** Comply with applicable materials described in Chapters 2 and 3 of the current HDOT "Construction Best Management Practices Field Manual". In addition, the materials shall comply with the following:

**(A) Grass.** Grass shall be a quick growing species such as rye grass, Italian rye grass, or cereal grasses. Grass shall be suitable to the area and provide a temporary cover that will not compete later with permanent cover. Alternative grasses are allowable if acceptable to the Engineer.

94

- **(B) Fertilizer and Soil Conditioners.** Fertilizer and soil conditioners shall be a standard commercial grade acceptable to the Engineer. Fertilizer shall conform to Subsection 619.02(H)(1) Commercial Fertilizer.
- **Hydro-mulching.** Hydro-mulching used as a temporary vegetative (C) stabilization measure shall consist of materials in Subsections 209.02(A) -Grass, and 209.02(B) - Fertilizer and Soil Conditioners. Mulches shall be recycled materials including bagasse, hay, straw, wood cellulose bark, wood chips, or other material acceptable to the Engineer. Mulches shall be clean and free of noxious weeds and deleterious materials. Potable water shall meet the requirements of Subsection 712.01 - Water. Submit alternate sources of irrigation water for the Engineer's acceptance if deviating from 712.01 - Water. Installation and other requirements shall be in accordance with portions of Section 641- Hydro-Mulch Seeding including 641.02(D) - Soil and Mulch Tackifier, 641.03(A) – Seeding, and 641.03(B) - Planting Period. Install non-vegetative controls including mulch or rolled erosion control products while the vegetation is being established. Water and fertilize grass. Apply fertilizer as recommended by the manufacturer. Replace grass the Engineer considers unsuitable or sick. Remove and dispose of trash and debris. Remove invasive species. Mow as needed to prevent site or signage obstructions, fire hazard, or nuisance to the public. Do not remove down stream sediment control measures until the vegetation is uniformly established, including no large bare areas, and provides 70 percent of the density of pre-disturbance vegetation. Temporary vegetative stabilization shall not be used longer than one year.
- **(D) Silt Fences.** Comply with ASTM D6462, Standard Practice for Silt Fence Installation.

Alternative materials or methods to control, prevent, remove and dispose pollution are allowable if acceptable to the Engineer.

#### 209.03 Construction.

- (A) Preconstruction Requirements.
  - (1) Water Pollution, Dust, and Erosion Control Meeting. Schedule a water pollution, dust, and erosion control meeting with the Engineer after Site-Specific BMP is accepted in writing by the Engineer. Meeting shall be scheduled a minimum of 7 calendar days prior to the Start Work Date. Discuss sequence of work, plans and proposals for water pollution, dust, and erosion control.
  - (2) Water Pollution, Dust, and Erosion Control Submittals. Submit a Site-Specific BMP Plan within 7 calendar days of contract certification date. Submission of complete and acceptable Site-Specific BMP Plan is the sole responsibility of the Contractor and

95 96	additional con incompleteness						ed	for	delays	due	to
97			_		_		_				
98	` ,			•					minimiz		
99	pollution								ainage (	or sev	wer
100	systems	. BM	IP shall	inclu	de the	e follov	wing:				
101											
102	1.		An ide	ntifica	tion c	of pote	ntial	poll	utants a	and th	neir
103	SC	ource	es.								
104											
105	2.						d hea	avy e	equipme	ent to	be
106	u	sed d	luring c	onstrı	uction	١.					
107											
108	3.		Descrip	otions	of the	e meth	ods	and	devices	s use	d to
109	m	ninimi	ize the	discha	arge o	of pollu	utant	s in	to State	• wate	ers,
110	dı	raina	ge or se	ewers	systei	ms.					
111											
112	4.		Details	of	the	proce	edure	es	used	for	the
113	m	nainte	enance	and s	ubsed	quent r	emo	val	of any e	rosior	n or
114	si	iltatio	n contro	ol dev	ices.	-			-		
115											
116	5.		Method	ds of	remo	ving ar	nd d	ispo	sing ha	ızardo	ous
117	W					_		•	ng cons		
118						,			5		
119	6		Method	ds of r	emov	ing and	d dis	posi	ing cond	rete a	and
120	a					_		•	ete curir		
121		•	, /droden		-		, ,			5	,
122											
123	7.	_	Spill Co	ontrol	and F	revent	tion a	and	Emerge	ency S	llia
124			nse Pla							,	
125		,									
126	8.	_	Fugitiv	e du	ist c	ontrol	inc	clud	ing du	st fr	om
127			_						f opera		
128			nation t			DIOOI	9	011	орога	110110	0.
129	3.		i alioni t		••						
130	9.		Method	ds of	storin	and	han	dlin	g of oils	s nai	ints
131	_		her pro			_			•	s, pai	
132	u.	iid Oti	noi pio	aaoto	asca	101 111	o pic	) CO			
133	11	0.	Materia	al etor	ane a	and ha	ndlir	na 2	ıreas, a	nd ot	her
134			g areas		agc a	and na	ii idiii	ig e	iicas, a	na ot	.i iCi
135	31	lagin	g arcas	•							
136	1	1.	Concre	to tru	ck w	schout					
		١.	Concre	ie iiu	UN W	asilout	.S.				
137	1	2.	Concre	to wa	oto o	ontrol					
138	1.	۷.	Concre	ele wa	isie c	OHUOI.					
139	4	2	Euglina	, and	main	tonon	20 0 <del>1</del>	ا مرد	hiolog a	nd at	hor
140 141		<b>3.</b> quipn	-	y and	main	tenan(	J <del>e</del> OI	vei	nicles a	na ot	.i ieí
			50B-0 209	01-14 -3a						r5/28	3/20

142	
143	<b>14.</b> Tracking of sediment offsite from project entries
144	and exits.
145	
146	<b>15.</b> Litter management.
147	10. Etter management.
	<b>16.</b> Toilet facilities.
148	<b>16.</b> Toilet facilities.
149	4 <b>7</b> OH 6 H 11 H
150	<b>17.</b> Other factors that may cause water pollution,
151	dust and erosion control.
152	
153	<b>(b)</b> Provide plans indicating location of water pollution, dust
154	and erosion control devices; provide plans and details of BMPs
155	to be installed or utilized; show areas of soil disturbance in cut
156	and fill, indicate areas used for construction staging and
157	storage including items (1) through (17) above, storage of
158	aggregate (indicate type of aggregate), asphalt cold mix, soil or
159	solid waste, equipment and vehicle parking, and show areas
160	where vegetative practices are to be implemented. Indicate
161	intended drainage pattern on plans. Include flow arrows.
162	Include separate drawing for each phase of construction that
163	alters drainage patterns. Indicate approximate date when
	device will be installed and removed.
164 165	device will be installed and removed.
	(c) Construction schedule.
166	(c) Construction schedule.
167	(d) Name (a) of an anific in dividual(a) decima etc. due an analytic
168	(d) Name(s) of specific individual(s) designated responsible
169	for water pollution, dust, and erosion controls on the project
170	site. Include home, cellular, and business telephone numbers,
171	fax numbers, and e-mail addresses.
172	
173	(e) Description of fill material to be used.
174	
175	<b>(f)</b> For projects with an NPDES Permit for Construction
176	Activities, submit information to address all sections in the
177	Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).
178	,
179	(g) For projects with an NPDES Permit, information
180	required for compliance with the conditions of the Notice of
181	General Permit Coverage (NGPC)/NPDES Permit.
182	Constant Simile Severage (New Option Beet Simile
183	(h) Site-Specific BMP Review Checklist. The checklist may
184	be downloaded from HDOT's Stormwater Management
	<del>_</del>
185	website at http://stormwaterhawaii.com.
186	Determine Oite One of DMD DI
187	Date and sign Site-Specific BMP Plan. Keep accepted
188	copy on site or at an accessible location so that it can be made

available at the time of an orange by the Engineer, HDOT DOH/EPA Representative.

BMP Plan shall be included Plan. Modify SWPPP if ne Include date of installation at measures. Obtain written act implementing revised Site-States.

Follow the guidelines.

available at the time of an on-site inspection or upon request by the Engineer, HDOT Third-Party Inspector, and/or DOH/EPA Representative. Amendments to the Site-Specific BMP Plan shall be included with original Site-Specific BMP Plan. Modify SWPPP if necessary to conform to revisions. Include date of installation and removal of Site-Specific BMP measures. Obtain written acceptance by the Engineer before implementing revised Site-Specific BMPs in the field.

Follow the guidelines in the current HDOT "Construction Best Management Practices Field Manual", in developing, installing, and maintaining Site-Specific BMPs for all projects. For any conflicting requirements between the Manual and applicable bid documents, the applicable bid documents will govern. Should a requirement not be clearly described within the applicable bid documents, notify the Engineer immediately for interpretation. For the purposes of clarification "applicable bid documents" include the construction plans, standard specifications, special provisions, Permits, and the SWPPP when applicable.

Follow Honolulu's City and County "Rules for Soil Erosion Standards and Guidelines" for all projects on Oahu. Use respective Soil Erosion Guidelines for Maui, Kauai and Hawaii projects.

**(B)** Construction Requirements. Do not begin work until submittals detailed in Subsection 209.03(A)(2) - Water Pollution, Dust, and Erosion Control Submittals are completed and accepted in writing by the Engineer.

Install, maintain, monitor, repair and replace site-specific BMP measures, such as for water pollution, dust and erosion control; installation, monitoring, and operation of hydrotesting activities; removal and disposal of hazardous waste indicated on plans, concrete cutting slurry, concrete curing water; or hydrodemolition water. Site-Specific BMP measures shall be in place, functional and accepted by HDOT personnel prior to initiating any ground disturbing activities.

If necessary, furnish and install rain gage in a secure location prior to field work including installation of site-specific BMP. Provide rain gage with a tolerance of at least 0.05 inches of rainfall. Install rain gage on project site in an area that will not deter rainfall from entering the gate opening. Do not install in a location where rain water may splash into rain gage. The rain gage installation shall be stable and plumbed. Maintain rain gage and replace rain gage that is stolen, does not function properly or accurately, is worn out, or needs to be relocated. Do not begin field work until rain gage is installed and Site-Specific BMPs are in place. Rain gage data logs shall be

readily available. Submit rain gage data logs weekly to the Engineer.

Address all comments received from the Engineer.

Modify and resubmit plans and construction schedules to correct conditions that develop during construction which were unforeseen during the design and pre-construction stages.

Coordinate temporary control provisions with permanent control features throughout the construction and post-construction period.

Limit maximum surface area of earth material exposed at any time to 300,000 square feet. Do not expose or disturb surface area of earth material (including clearing and grubbing) until BMP measures are installed and accepted in writing by the Engineer. Protect temporarily or permanently disturbed soil surface from rainfall impact, runoff and wind before end of the work day.

Immediately initiate stabilizing exposed soil areas upon completion of earth disturbing activities for areas permanently or temporarily ceased on any portion of the site. Earth-disturbing activities have permanently ceased when clearing and excavation within any area of the construction site that will not include permanent structures has been completed. Earth-disturbing activities have temporarily ceased when clearing, grading, and excavation within any area of the site that will not include permanent structures will not resume for a period of 14 or more calendar days, but such activities will resume in the future. The term "immediately" is used in this section to define the deadline for initiating stabilization measures. "Immediately" means as soon as practicable, but no later than the end of the next work day, following the day when the earth-disturbing activities have temporarily or permanently ceased.

For projects with an NPDES Permit for Construction activities:

- 1) For construction areas discharging into waters not impaired for nutrients or sediments, complete initial stabilization within 14 calendar days after the temporary or permanent cessation of earth-disturbing activities.
- **2)** For construction areas discharging into nutrient or sediment impaired waters, complete initial stabilization within 7 calendar days after the temporary or permanent cessation of earth-disturbing activities.

For projects without an NPDES Permit for Construction activities, complete initial stabilization within 14 calendar days after the temporary or permanent cessation of earth-disturbing activities.

283	Any of the following types of activities constitutes initiation of
284	stabilization:
285	
286	(1) Prepping the soil for vegetative or non-vegetative stabilization;
287	
288	(2) Applying mulch or other non-vegetative product to the exposed
289	area;
290	
291	(3) Seeding or planting the exposed area;
292	(4) (0) 1
293	(4) Starting any of the activities in items $(1) - (3)$ above on a portion
294	of the area to be stabilized, but not on the entire area; and
295	
296	(5) Finalizing arrangements to have stabilization product fully installed
297	in compliance with the deadline for completing initial stabilization
298	activities.
299	
300	Any of the following types of activities constitutes completion of initial
301	stabilization activities:
302	
303	(1) For vegetative stabilization, all activities necessary to initially seed
304	or plant the area to be stabilized; and/or
305	
306	(2) For non-vegetative stabilization, the installation or application of
307	all such non-vegetative measures.
308	
309	If the Contractor is unable to meet the deadlines above due to
310	circumstances beyond the Contractor's control, and the Contractor is using
311	vegetative cover for temporary or permanent stabilization, the Contractor
312	may comply with the following stabilization deadlines instead as agreed to by
313	the Engineer:
314	
315	(1) Immediately initiate, and complete within the timeframe shown
316	above, the installation of temporary non-vegetative stabilization
317	measures to prevent erosion;
318	
319	(2) Complete all soil conditioning, seeding, watering or irrigation
320	installation, mulching, and other required activities related to the
321	planting and initial establishment of vegetation as soon as conditions
322	or circumstances allow it on the site; and
323	
324	(3) Notify and provide documentation to the Engineer the
325	circumstances that prevent the Contractor from meeting the deadlines
326	above for stabilization and the schedule the Contractor will follow for
327	initiating and completing initial stabilization and as agreed to by the
328	Engineer.
329	

330	Follow the applicable requirements of the specifications and special
331	provisions including Section 619 and Section 641.
332	
333	Immediately after seeding or planting the area to be vegetatively
334	stabilized, to the extent necessary to prevent erosion on the seeded or
335	planted area, select, design, and install non-vegetative erosion controls that
336	provide cover (e.g., mulch, rolled erosion control products) to the area while
337	vegetation is becoming established.
338	
339	Protect exposed or disturbed surface area with mulches, grass seeds
340	or hydromulch. Spray mulches at a rate of 2,000 pounds per acre. Add
341	tackifier to mix at a rate of 85 pounds per acre. Apply grass seeds at a rate
342	of 125 pounds per acre. For hydromulch, use the ingredients and rates
343	required for mulches and grass seeds. Submit recommendations from a
344	licensed Landscape Architect when deviating from the application rates
345	above.
346	
347	Apply fertilizer to mulches, grass seed or hydromulch per
348	manufacturer's recommendations. Submit recommendations from a licensed
349	Landscape Architect when deviating from the manufacturer's
350	recommendations.
351	
352	Install velocity dissipation measures when exposing erodible surfaces
353	greater than 15 feet in height.
354	
355	BMP measures shall be in place and operational at the end of work
356	day or as required by Section 209.03(B).
357	
358	Install and maintain either or both stabilized construction entrances
359	and wheel washes to minimize tracking of dirt and mud onto roadways.
360	Restrict traffic to stabilized construction areas only. Clean dirt, mud, or other
361	material tracked onto the road, sidewalk, or other paved area by the end of
362	the same day in which the track-out occurs. Modify stabilized construction
363	entrances to prevent mud from being tracked onto road. Stabilize entire
364	access roads if necessary.
365	
366	Chemicals may be used as soil stabilizers for either or both erosion
367	and dust control if acceptable to the Engineer.
368	
369	Provide temporary slope drains of rigid or flexible conduits to carry
370	runoff from cuts and embankments. Provide portable flume at the entrance.
371	Shorten or extend temporary slope drains to ensure proper function.
372	
373	Protect ditches, channels, and other drainageways leading away from
374	cuts and fills at all times by either:
375	
376	(1) Hydro-mulching the lower region of embankments in the

377	immediat	e area.
378		
379	<b>(2)</b> Ins	stalling check dams and siltation control devices.
380		
381	<b>(3)</b> Ot	her methods acceptable to the Engineer.
382		
383	Provide for	or controlled discharge of waters impounded, directed, or
384		oject activities or erosion control measures.
385	• •	
386	Cover ex	sposed surface of materials completely with tarpaulin or
387		when transporting aggregate, soil, excavated material or
388		y be source of fugitive dust.
389		,
390	Cleanup	and remove any pollutant that can be attributed to the
391	Contractor.	, ,
392		
393	Install or	modify Site-Specific BMP measures due to change in the
394		ans and methods, or for omitted condition that should have
395		r in the accepted Site-Specific BMP or a Site-Specific BMP
396		in accepted Site-Specific BMP that is not satisfactorily
397	<u> </u>	difications to Site-Specific BMP measures shall be accepted
398		Engineer prior to implementation.
399	in withing by the	Zinginiosi pinor to impionioniation.
400	Properly i	maintain all Site-Specific BMP measures.
401	1 Topony I	mamam an one openio bim measures.
402	For project	cts with an NPDES Permit for Construction Activities:
403	i oi projec	ote with an in Been commercial contention in the content in the
404	<b>(1)</b> For	construction areas discharging into nutrient or sediment
405		waters, inspect, prepare a written report, and make repairs to
406		asures at the following intervals:
407	Divii inioc	action at the following intervals.
408	(a)	Weekly.
409	(α)	wooding.
410	(h)	Within 24 hours of any rainfall of 0.25 inch or greater which
411		curs in a 24-hour period.
412	00	
413	(c)	When existing erosion control measures are damaged or
414		t operating properly as required by Site-Specific BMP.
415	110	t operating property as required by one-operation bivin.
416	(2) For (	construction areas discharging to waters not impaired for
417	• •	or sediments, inspect, prepare a written report, and make
418		BMP measures at the following intervals:
410 419	repairs to	Divin Theasures at the following intervals.
419	(2)	Weekly.
420 421	(a)	vvooriy.
421 422	/h)	When existing erosion control measures are damaged or
422 423	• •	t operating properly as required by Site-Specific BMP.
423	HO	t operating property as required by Site-Specific DMP.

425 426

For projects without an NPDES Permit for Construction activities, inspect, prepare a written report, and make repairs to BMP measures at the following intervals:

427 428 429

(a) Weekly.

430 431

**(b)** When existing erosion control measures are damaged or not operating properly as required by Site-Specific BMP.

432 433 434

Temporarily remove, replace or relocate any Site-Specific BMP that must be removed, replaced or relocated due to potential or actual flooding, or potential danger or damage to project or public.

436 437 438

439

435

Maintain records of inspections of Site-Specific BMP work. Keep continuous records for duration of the project. Submit copy of Inspection Report to the Engineer within 24 hours after each inspection.

440 441 442

443

444

445 446

447

448

449

450

451 452

453

454

455

456

457 458

459

460

461 462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

The Contractor's designated representative specified in Subsection 209.03(A)(2)(d) shall address any Site-Specific BMP deficiencies brought up by the Engineer immediately, including weekends and holidays, and complete work to fix the deficiencies by the close of the next work day if the problem does not require significant repair or replacement, or if the problem can be corrected through routine maintenance. Address any Site-Specific BMP deficiencies brought up by the State's Third-Party Inspector in the timeframe above or as specified in the Consent Decree or MS4 NPDES Permit, whichever is more stringent. The Consent Decree timeframe requirement applies statewide. The MS4 NPDES Permit only applies to Oahu. In this section, "immediately" means the Contractor shall take all reasonable measures to minimize or prevent discharge of pollutants until a permanent solution is installed and made operational. If a problem is identified at a time in the day in which it is too late to initiate repair, initiation of repair shall begin on the following work day. When installation of a new pollution prevention control or a significant repair is needed, complete installation or repair no later than seven calendar days from the time of notification/Contractor discovery. Notify the Engineer and document why it is infeasible to complete the installation or repair within seven calendar days and complete the work as soon as practicable and as agreed to by the Address Site-Specific BMP deficiencies discovered by the Contractor within the timeframe above. The Contractor's failure to satisfactorily address these Site-Specific BMP deficiencies, the Engineer reserves the right to employ outside assistance or use the Engineer's own labor forces to provide necessary corrective measures. The Engineer will charge the Contractor such incurred costs plus any associated project engineering costs. The Engineer will make appropriate deductions from the Contractor's monthly progress estimate. Failure to apply Site-Specific BMP measures may result in one or more of the following: assessment of

4	7	1	
4			
4	7	3	
4	7	4	
4			
4			
4			
4			
4			
4			
4 4			
4			
4			
4			
4			
4			
4			
4			
4			
4			
4	9	2	
4	9	3	
4			
4			
4			
4			
4			
4	-	-	
5 5			
	0		
	0		
		<i>3</i>	
	0		
		6	
		7	
5	0	8	
5	0	9	
5	1	0	
5	1	1	
5	1	2	
5	1	3	
5	1	4	
5	1	5	

517

liquidated damages, suspension, or cancellation of Contract with the Contractor being fully responsible for all additional costs incurred by the State.

(C) Discharges of Storm Water Associated with Construction Activities. If work includes disturbance of one acre or more, an NPDES Permit authorizing Discharges of Storm Water Associated with Construction Activity (CWB-NOI Form C) or Individual Permit authorizing storm water discharges associated with construction activity is required from the Department of Health Clean Water Branch (DOH-CWB).

Do not begin construction activities until all required conditions of the permit are met and submittals detailed in Subsection 209.03(A)(2) – Water Pollution, Dust, and Erosion Control Submittals are completed and accepted in writing by the Engineer.

(D) Discharges Associated with Hydrotesting Activities. If hydrotesting activities require effluent discharge into State waters or drainage systems, an NPDES Hydrotesting Waters Permit (CWB-NOI Form F) or Individual Permit authorizing discharges associated with hydrotesting from DOH-CWB is required from the DOH-CWB.

Do not begin hydrotesting activities until the DOH-CWB has issued an Individual NPDES Permit or Notice of General Permit Coverage (NGPC). Conduct Hydrotesting operations in accordance with the conditions of the permit or NGPC.

**(E)** Discharges Associated with Dewatering Activities. If dewatering activities require effluent discharge into State waters or drainage systems, an NPDES Dewatering Permit (CWB-NOI Form G) or Individual Permit authorizing discharges associated with dewatering from DOH-CWB is required from the DOH-CWB.

Do not begin dewatering activities until the DOH-CWB has issued an Individual NPDES Permit or Notice of General Permit Coverage (NGPC). Conduct dewatering operations in accordance with the conditions of the permit or NGPC.

- **(F) Solid Waste.** Submit the Solid Waste Disclosure Form for Construction Sites to the Engineer within 7 calendar days of contract certification date. Provide a copy of all the disposal receipts from the facility permitted by the Department of Health to receive solid waste to the Engineer monthly. This should also include documentation from any intermediary facility where solid waste is handled or processed, or as directed by the Engineer.
- (G) Construction BMP Training. The Contractor's representative

518 responsible for development of the Site-Specific BMP Plan and 519 implementation of Site-Specific BMPs in the field shall attend the State's 520 Construction Best Management Practices Training. The Contractor shall 521 keep training logs updated and readily available. 522 523 209.04 Measurement. 524 525 (A) Installation, maintenance, monitoring, and removal of BMP will be paid 526 on a lump sum basis. Measurement for payment will not apply. 527 528 (B) The Engineer will only measure additional water pollution, dust and 529 erosion control required and requested by the Engineer on a force account 530 basis in accordance with Subsection 109.06 – Force Account Provisions and Compensation. 531 532 533 209.05 Payment. The Engineer will pay for accepted pay items listed below at 534 contract price per pay unit, as shown in the proposal schedule. Payment will be full 535 compensation for work prescribed in this section and contract documents. 536 537 The Engineer will pay for each of the following pay items when included in 538 proposal schedule: 539 540 Pay Item Pay Unit 541 542 Installation, Maintenance, Monitoring, and Removal of BMP Lump Sum 543 544 Additional Water Pollution, Dust, and Erosion Control Force Account 545 546 An estimated amount for force account is allocated in proposal schedule under 'Additional Water Pollution, Dust, and Erosion Control', but actual amount to 547 be paid will be the sum shown on accepted force account records, whether this sum 548 549 be more or less than estimated amount allocated in proposal schedule. The 550 Engineer will pay for BMP measures requested by the Engineer that are beyond 551 scope of accepted Site-Specific BMP on a force account basis. 552 553 No progress payment will be authorized until the Engineer accepts in writing 554 Site-Specific BMP or when the Contractor fails to maintain project site in accordance 555 with accepted BMP. 556 557 For all citations or fines received by the Department for non-compliance, including compliance with NPDES Permit conditions, the Contractor shall reimburse 558 State within 30 calendar days for full amount of outstanding cost State has incurred, 559 560 or the Engineer will deduct cost from progress payment.

compliance of each BMP requirement and all other requirements in this section.

The Engineer will assess liquidated damages up to \$27,500 per day for non-

561562

563

## Appendix A

The following list identifies potential pollutant sources and corresponding BMPs used to mitigate the pollutants. Each BMP is referenced to the corresponding section of the current HDOT Construction Best Management Practices Field Manual or appropriate Supplemental Sheets. The Manual may be obtained from the HDOT Statewide Stormwater Management Program Website at <a href="http://www.stormwaterhawaii.com/resources/contractors-and-consultants/">http://www.stormwaterhawaii.com/resources/contractors-and-consultants/</a> under Construction Best Management Practices Field Manual. Supplemental BMP sheets are located at <a href="http://www.stormwaterhawaii.com/resources/contractors-and-consultants/storm-water-pollution-prevention-plan-swppp/">http://www.stormwaterhawaii.com/resources/contractors-and-consultants/storm-water-pollution-prevention-plan-swppp/</a> under Concrete Curing and Irrigation Water.

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
Construction debris, green waste, general litter	<ul> <li>Separate contaminated clean up materials from construction and demolition (C&amp;D) wastes.</li> <li>Provide waste containers (e.g., dumpster or trash receptacle) of sufficient size and number to contain construction and domestic wastes.</li> <li>Inspect construction waste and recycling areas regularly.</li> <li>Schedule solid waste collection regularly.</li> <li>Schedule recycling activities based on construction/demolition phases.</li> <li>Empty waste containers weekly or when they are two-thirds full, whichever is sooner.</li> <li>Do not allow containers to overflow. Clean up immediately if they do.</li> <li>On work days, clean up and dispose of waste in designated waste containers.</li> <li>See Solid Waste Management Section SM-6 for additional requirements.</li> <li>Provide Storm Drain Inlet Protection and/or Perimeter Sediment Controls as applicable.</li> </ul>	See Solid Waste Management Section SM-6. Protect Storm Drain Inlets SC-2, and Perimeter Sediment Controls where applicable.
Materials associated with the operation and maintenance of equipment, such as oil, fuel, and hydraulic fluid leakage	<ul> <li>Use off-site wash racks, repair and maintenance facilities, and fueling sites when practical.</li> <li>Designate bermed wash area if cleaning on site is necessary.</li> <li>Place drip pans or drop cloths under vehicles and equipment to absorb spills or leaks.</li> <li>Provide an ample supply of readily available spill cleanup materials.</li> <li>Clean up spills immediately, using dry clean-up methods where possible, and dispose of used materials properly.</li> <li>Do not clean surfaces or spills by hosing the area down.</li> <li>Eliminate the source of the spill to prevent a discharge or a continuation of an ongoing discharge.</li> <li>Inspect on-site vehicles and equipment regularly and immediately repair leaks.</li> <li>Regularly inspect fueling areas and storage tanks.</li> </ul>	See Vehicle and Equipment Cleaning, Maintenance, and Refueling, Sections SM- 11, SM-12, and SM-13, and Material Delivery, Storage and Material Use Sections SM-2 and SM-3, and Spill Prevention and Control

Pollutant	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	ВМР
Source		Requirements
	Train employees on proper maintenance and spill practices and procedures and fueling and cleanup procedures.	SM-10.
	Store diesel fuel, oil, hydraulic fluid, or other petroleum products or other chemicals in water-tight containers and provide cover or secondary containment.	
	Do not remove original product labels and comply with manufacturer's labels for proper disposal.	
	Dispose of containers only after all the product has been used.	
	Dispose of or recycle oil or oily wastes according to Federal, State, and Local requirements.	
	Store soaps, detergents, or solvents under cover or other means to prevent contact with rainwater.	
	See Vehicle and Equipment Cleaning,	
	Maintenance, and Refueling, Sections SM-11, SM-12, and SM-13 and Material Use Section SM-3 for	
	additional requirements.	

Pollutant	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	ВМР
Source		Requirements
Soil erosion from the disturbed areas	<ul> <li>Provide Soil Stabilization, Slope Protection, Storm Drain Inlet Protection SC-2, Perimeter Controls and Sediment Barriers, Sediment Basins and Detention Ponds, Check Dams SC-9, Level Spreader SC-10, Paving Operations SM-19, Construction Road Stabilization EC-1, Controlling Storm Water Flowing Onto and Through the Project, Post-Construction BMPs, and Non-Structural BMPs (Employee Training SM-1, Scheduling SM-14, Location of Potential Sources of Sediment SM-15, Preservation of Existing Vegetation SM-16).</li> <li>Delineate, and clearly mark off, with flags, tape, or other similar marking device all natural buffer</li> </ul>	Soil Stabilization 1. SM-21 Topsoil Manageme nt 2. EC-5 Seeding and Planting 3. EC-6 Mulching 4. EC-7 Geotextiles and Mats
	areas defined in the SWPPP.	
	Preserve native topsoil where practicable.	Slope   Protection
	<ul> <li>In areas where vegetative stabilization will occur, restrict vehicle/equipment use in areas to avoid soil compaction or condition soil to promote vegetative growth.</li> </ul>	1. EC-5 Seeding and Planting
	For Storm Drain Inlet Protection, clean, or remove and replace, the protection measures as sediment accumulates, the filter becomes clogged, and/or performance is compromised.	2. EC-6 Mulching 3. EC-7 Geotextiles and Mats
	• Where there is evidence of sediment accumulation adjacent to the inlet protection measure, remove the deposited sediment by the end of the same day in which it is found or by the end of the following work day if removal by the same day is not feasible.	4. EC-9 Slope Roughenin g, Terracing, and Rounding 5. SC-11
	Sediment basins shall be designed and maintained in accordance with HAR 11-55.	Slope Drains and Subsurface
	Minimize disturbance on steep slopes (Greater than 15% in grade).	Drains 6. SC-12 Top and Toe of
	If disturbance of steep slopes are unavoidable,     phase disturbances and use stabilization techniques	Slope Diversion Ditches

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
	designed for steep grades.	and Berms
	For temporary drains and swales use velocity dissipation devices within and at the outlet to minimize erosive flow velocities.	SC-2 Storm Drain Inlet Protection
		Perimeter Controls and Sediment Barriers 1. SC-1 Silt Fence 2. SC-5 Vegetated Filter Strips and Buffers 3. SC-8 Compost Filter Berm 4. SC-13 Sandbag Barrier 5. SC-14 Brush or Rock Filter
		Sediment Basins and Detention Ponds 1. SC-15 Sediment Trap 2. SC-16 Sediment Basin
		SC-9 Check Dams
		SC-10 Level Spreader

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
		SM-19 Paving Operations EC-1 Construction Road Stabilization
		Controlling Storm Water Flowing onto and Through the Project 1. EC-8 Run- On Diversion 2. SC-6 Earth Dike 3. SC-7 Temporary Drains and Swales
		Post Construction BMPs  1. EC-4 Flared Culvert End Sections 2. SC-3 Rip- Rap and Gabion Inflow Protection 3. SC-4 Outlet Protection and Velocity Dissipation

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
		4. SM-21 Topsoil Manageme nt
		Non-Structural BMPs
		1. SM-1 Employee Training
		2. SM-14 Scheduling 3. SM-15
		Location of Potential Sources of
		Sediment 4. SM-16
		Preservation of Existing

Pollutant	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	ВМР
Source		Requirements
Sediment from soil stockpiles	<ul> <li>Locate stockpiles a minimum of 50 feet or as far as practicable from concentrated runoff or outside of any natural buffers identified on the SWPPP.</li> <li>Place bagged materials on pallets and under cover.</li> <li>Provide physical diversion to protect stockpiles from concentrated runoff.</li> <li>Cover stockpiles with plastic or comparable material when practicable.</li> <li>Place silt fence, fiber filtration tubes, or straw wattles around stockpiles.</li> <li>Do not hose down or sweep soil or sediment accumulated on pavement or other impervious surfaces into any storm water conveyance (unless connected to a sediment basin, sediment trap, or similarly effective control), storm drain inlet, or state water.</li> <li>Unless infeasible, contain and securely protect stockpiles from the wind.</li> <li>Provide Storm Drain Inlet Protection and/or Perimeter Sediment Controls as applicable.</li> <li>See Protection of Stockpiles Section SM-4 for additional requirements.</li> </ul>	See Protection of Stockpiles Section SM-4. Protect Storm Drain Inlets SC-2, and Perimeter Sediment Controls where applicable.
Emulsified asphalt or prime/tack coat	<ul> <li>Provide training for employees and contractors on proper material delivery and storage practices and procedures.</li> <li>Restrict paving operations during wet weather to prevent paving materials from being discharged.</li> <li>Use asphalt emulsions such as prime coat when possible.</li> <li>Protect drain inlet structures and manholes during application of tack coat, seal coat, slurry seal, and fog seal.</li> <li>Keep ample supplies of drip pans and absorbent materials on site.</li> <li>Inspect inlet protection devices.</li> <li>See Material Delivery and Storage Section SM-2 and Paving Operations Section SM-19 for additional requirements.</li> <li>Provide Storm Drain Inlet Protection and/or</li> </ul>	See Material Delivery and Storage Section SM-2 and Material Use Section SM-3, Paving Operations Section SM- 19, Protect Storm Drain Inlets SC-2, and Perimeter Sediment Controls where

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
	Perimeter Sediment Controls as applicable.	applicable.
Materials associated with painting, such as paint and paint wash solvent	<ul> <li>Hazardous chemicals shall be well-labeled and stored in original containers.</li> <li>Keep ample supply of cleanup materials on site.</li> <li>Dispose container only after all of the product has been used.</li> <li>Remove as much paint from brushes on painted surface.</li> <li>Rinse from water-based paints shall be discharged into the sanitary sewer system where possible. If not, direct all washwater into a leak-proof container or leak-proof pit. The container or pit must be designed so that no overflows can occur due to inadequate sizing or precipitation.</li> <li>Locate on-site wash area a minimum of 50 feet away or as far as practicable from storm drain inlets, open drainage facilities, or water bodies.</li> <li>Do not dump liquid wastes into the storm drainage system.</li> <li>Filter and re-use solvents and thinners.</li> <li>Dispose of oil-based paints and residue as a hazardous waste.</li> <li>Ensure collection, removal, and disposal of hazardous waste complies with regulations.</li> <li>Immediately clean up spills and leaks.</li> <li>Properly store paints, solvents, and epoxy compounds.</li> <li>Properly store and dispose waste materials generated from painting and structure repair and construction activities.</li> <li>Mix paints in a covered and contained area when possible to minimize adverse impacts from spills.</li> <li>Do not apply traffic paint or thermoplastic if rain is forecasted.</li> <li>See Material Delivery and Storage Section SM-2, Material Use SM-3, Waste Management, Hazardous Waste Management, Spill Prevention and Control Section SM-10, and Structure Construction and Painting Section SM-20 for additional requirements.</li> </ul>	See Material Delivery and Storage Section SM-2, Material Use Section SM-3, Hazardous Waste Management Section SM-9, Waste Management, Spill Prevention and Control Section SM- 10, and Structure Construction and Painting Section SM- 20, Protect Storm Drain Inlets SC-2, and Perimeter Sediment Controls where applicable.

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
	Provide Storm Drain Inlet Protection and/or Perimeter Sediment Controls as applicable.	
Industrial chemicals, fertilizers, and/or pesticides	<ul> <li>Hazardous chemicals shall be well-labeled and stored in original containers.</li> <li>Keep ample supply of cleanup materials on site.</li> <li>Clean up spills immediately, using dry clean-up methods where possible, and dispose of used materials properly.</li> <li>Do not clean surfaces or spills by hosing the area down.</li> <li>Eliminate the source of the spill to prevent a discharge or a furtherance of an ongoing discharge.</li> <li>Dispose container only after all of the product has been used.</li> <li>Retain a complete set of material safety data sheets on site.</li> <li>Store industrial chemicals in water-tight containers and provide either cover or secondary containment.</li> <li>Provide cover when storing fertilizers or pesticides to prevent these chemicals from coming into contact with rainwater.</li> <li>Restrict amount of pesticide prepared to quantity necessary for the current application.</li> <li>Do not apply fertilizers or pesticides during or just before a rain event.</li> <li>Do not apply to stormwater conveyance channels with flowing water.</li> <li>Comply with fertilizer and pesticide manufacturer's recommended usage instructions.</li> <li>Follow federal, state, and local laws regarding fertilizer application.</li> <li>Do not dispose of toxic liquid wastes (solvents, used oils, and paints) or chemicals (additives, acids, and curing compounds) in dumpsters allocated for construction debris.</li> <li>Ensure collection, removal, and disposal of hazardous waste complies with regulations. Hazardous waste that cannot be reused or recycled shall be disposed of by a licensed hazardous waste hauler.</li> <li>See Material Delivery and Storage Section SM2,</li> </ul>	See Material Delivery and Storage Section SM-2, Material Use Section SM-3, and Hazardous Waste Management Section SM-9, and Spill Prevention and Control SM-10

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
	Material Use SM-3, and Waste Management, Hazardous Waste Management Section SM-9 for additional requirements.	
Hazardous waste (Batteries, Solvents, Treated Lumber, etc.)	<ul> <li>Do not dispose of toxic materials in dumpsters allocated for construction debris.</li> <li>Ensure collection, removal, and disposal of hazardous waste complies with regulations.</li> <li>Hazardous waste that cannot be reused or recycled shall be disposed of by a licensed hazardous waste hauler.</li> <li>Segregate and recycle wastes from vehicle/equipment maintenance activities such as used oil or oil filters, greases, cleaning solutions, antifreeze, automotive batteries, and hydraulic and transmission fluids.</li> <li>Store waste in sealed containers, which are constructed of suitable materials to prevent leakage and corrosion, and which are labeled in accordance with applicable Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) requirements and all other applicable federal, state, and local requirements.</li> <li>All containers stored outside shall be kept away from surface waters and within appropriately-sized secondary containment (e.g., spill berms, decks, spill containment pallets). Provide cover if possible.</li> <li>Clean up spills immediately, using dry clean-up methods where possible, and dispose of used materials properly.</li> <li>Do not clean surfaces or spills by hosing the area down.</li> <li>Eliminate the source of the spill to prevent a discharge or a continuation of an ongoing discharge.</li> <li>Ensure collection, removal, and disposal of hazardous waste complies with manufacturer's recommendations and is in compliance with federal, state, and local requirements.</li> <li>See Hazardous Waste Management Section SM-9 and Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance SM-12 for additional requirements.</li> </ul>	See Hazardous Waste Management Section SM-9 and Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance SM-12
Metals and	Inspect construction waste and recycling areas	See Solid

Pollutant	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	ВМР
Source		Requirements
Building Materials	<ul> <li>regularly.</li> <li>Schedule solid waste collection regularly.</li> <li>If building materials or metals are stored on site (such as rebar or galvanized poles) store under cover under tarps or in containers.</li> <li>Minimize the amount of material stored on site.</li> <li>Do not stockpile uncovered metals or other building materials in close proximity to discharge points.</li> <li>See Solid Waste Management Section SM-6 for additional requirements.</li> </ul>	Waste Management Section SM-6
Contaminated Soil	<ul> <li>See Waste Management, Contaminated Soil Management Section SM-8 and/or Hazardous Waste Management Section SM-9 for additional requirements.</li> <li>At minimum contain contaminated material soil by surrounding with impermeable lined berms or cover exposed contaminated material with plastic sheets.</li> </ul>	See Waste Management, Contaminated Soil Management Section SM-8 and/or Hazardous Waste Management Section SM-9
Dust Control Water	<ul> <li>Do not over spray water for dust control purposes which will result in runoff from the area.</li> <li>Apply water as conditions require.</li> <li>Washing down of debris or dirt into drainage, sewage systems, or State waters is not allowed.</li> <li>See Dust Control Section SM-18 for additional requirements.</li> </ul>	See Dust Control Section SM-18
Concrete Truck Wash Water	<ul> <li>Disposal of concrete truck wash water via percolation is prohibited.</li> <li>Wash concrete-coated vehicles or equipment offsite or in the designated wash area.</li> <li>Locate on-site wash area a minimum of 50 feet</li> </ul>	See Waste Management, Concrete Waste Management

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
	away or as far as practicable from storm drain inlets, open drainage facilities, or water bodies.	Section SM-5
	Runoff from the on-site concrete wash area shall be contained in a temporary pit or level bermed area where the concrete can set.	
	Design the area so that no overflow can occur due to inadequate wash area sizing or precipitation.	
	The temporary pit shall be lined with plastic to prevent seepage of wash water into the ground.	
	Allow wash water to evaporate or collect wash water and all concrete debris in a concrete washout system bin.	
	Do not dump liquid wastes into storm drainage system.	
	Dispose of liquid and solid concrete wastes in compliance with federal, state, and local standards.	
	See Waste Management, Concrete Waste Management Section SM-5 for additional requirements.	

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
Sediment Track-Out	Include Stabilized Construction Entrance at all points that exit onto paved roads.	See Stabilized Construction
	A sediment trapping device is required if a wash rack is used in conjunction with the stabilized construction entrance/exit.	Entrance Section EC-2
	The pavement shall not be cleaned by washing down the street.	
	If sweeping is ineffective or it is necessary to wash the streets, wash water must be contained either by construction of a sump, diverting the water to an acceptable disposal area, or vacuuming the wash water.	
	Use BMPs for adjacent drainage structures.	
	Remove sediment tracked onto the street by the end of the day in which the track-out occurs.	
	Restrict vehicle use to properly designated exit points.	
	Include additional BMPs which remove sediment prior to exit when minimum dimensions can not be met.	
	See Stabilized Construction Entrance Section     EC-2 for additional requirements.	
Irrigation	Consider irrigation requirements.	See Seeding
Water	Where possible, avoid species which require irrigation.	and Planting Section EC-5
	Design timing and application methods of irrigation water to eliminate the runoff of excess irrigation water into the storm water drainage system.	and California Stormwater BMP Handbook SD- 12 Efficient
	See Seeding and Planting Section EC-5 and California Stormwater BMP Handbook SD-12 Efficient Irrigation at	Irrigation
	http://www.stormwaterhawaii.com/resources/contract 50B-01-14	

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
	ors-and-consultants/storm-water-pollution- prevention-plan-swppp/ under Irrigation Water for additional requirements.	
Hydrotesting Effluent	If work includes removing, relocation or installing waterlines, and Contractor elects to flush waterline or discharge hydrotesting effluent into State waters or drainage systems, the Contractor shall prepare and obtain HDOT acceptance of a NOI/NPDES Permit Form F application for HDOT submittal to DOH CWB at least 30 calendar days prior to the start of Hydrotesting Activities if necessary. Site-Specific BMPs will be included in the NOI/NPDES Permit Form F submittal.	Site-Specific BMPs will be included in the NOI/NPDES Permit Form F submittal.
Dewatering Effluent	If excavation or backfilling operations require dewatering, and Contractor elects to discharge dewatering effluent into State waters or existing drainage systems, Contractor shall prepare and obtain HDOT acceptance of a NOI/NPDES Permit Form G application for HDOT submittal to DOH CWB at least 30 calendar days prior to the start of Dewatering Activities if necessary. See Site Planning and General Practices, Dewatering Operations Section SM-17 for additional requirements.	See Dewatering Operations SM-17. Site- Specific BMPs will be included in the NOI/NPDES Permit Form G submittal.
Saw-cutting Slurry	<ul> <li>Saw cut slurry shall be removed from the site by vacuuming.</li> <li>Provide storm drain protection during saw cutting. See Paving Operations Section SM-19 for additional requirements.</li> <li>Provide Storm Drain Inlet Protection and/or Perimeter Sediment Controls as applicable.</li> </ul>	See Paving Operations Section SM- 19, Storm Drain Inlet Protection SC-2, Perimeter sediment controls where applicable

Pollutant	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Baguiramenta
Source		Requirements
Concrete Curing Water	<ul> <li>Avoid overspraying of curing compounds.</li> <li>Apply an amount of compound that covers the</li> </ul>	See California Stormwater BMP Handbook NS- 12 Concrete
	surface, but does not allow any runoff of the compound.	
	See California Stormwater BMP Handbook NS-12     Concrete Curing at     http://www.stormwaterhawaii.com/resources/contract	Curing
	ors-and-consultants/storm-water-pollution- prevention-plan-swppp/ under Concrete Curing for additional requirements.	
Plaster Waste Water	Direct all washwater into a leak-proof container or leak-proof pit. The container or pit must be designed so that no overflows can occur due to inadequate sizing or precipitation.	See Material Delivery and Storage Section SM-2,
	Locate on-site wash area a minimum of 50 feet away or as far as practicable from storm drain inlets, open drainage facilities, or water bodies.	Material Use Section SM-3, and
	Any significant residual materials remaining on the ground after the completion of construction shall be removed and properly disposed. If the residual materials contaminate the soil, then the contaminated soil shall also be removed and properly disposed of.	Hazardous Waste Management Section SM-9
	Plaster waste water shall not be allowed to flow into drainage structures or State waters.	
	See Material Delivery and Storage Section SM-2, Material Use SM-3, and Hazardous Waste Management Section SM-9 for additional requirements.	

Pollutant Source	Appropriate Site-Specific BMP to be Implemented	BMP Requirements
Water-Jet Wash Water	<ul> <li>For Water-Jet Wash Water used to clean vehicles, use off site wash racks or commercial washing facilities when practical.</li> <li>See Vehicle and Equipment Cleaning Section SM-11 for additional information.</li> </ul>	See Vehicle and Equipment Cleaning Section SM-11
	For Water-Jet Wash Water used to clean impervious surfaces, the runoff shall not be allowed to flow into drainage structures or State Waters.	
Sanitary/Septic Waste	<ul> <li>Locate Sanitary facilities in a convenient place away from drainage facilities.</li> <li>Position sanitary facilities so they are secure and will not be tipped over or knocked down.</li> <li>Wastewater shall not be discharged to the ground or buried.</li> <li>A licensed service provider shall maintain sanitary/septic facilities in good working order.</li> <li>Schedule regular waste collection by a licensed transporter.</li> </ul>	See Sanitary/Septic Waste Section SM-7.
	See Sanitary/Septic Waste Section SM-7 for additional requirements.	

579 "

580

581 582

**END OF SECTION 209** 

#### PROPOSAL TO THE

#### STATE OF HAWAII

#### **DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION**

PROJECT: Kaumualii Highway Intersection Improvements at Waimea

Canyon Drive and Menehune Road / Halepule Road

PROJECT NO.: 50B-01-14

COMPLETION TIME: 120 Working Days from the Start Work Date.

#### **DESIGN PROJECT MANAGER:**

NAME: Eric I. Fujikawa

ADDRESS: 1720 Haleukana Street, Lihue, HI 96766

PHONE NO.: (808) 241-3015

EMAIL: eric.i.fujikawa@hawaii.gov

FAX NO.: (808) 241-3011

#### MINUTES OF THE PRE-BID MEETING

**PROJECT:** Kaumualii Highway Intersection Improvements at Waimea Canyon Drive

and Menehune Road/Halepule Road

**PROJECT NO.:** 50B-01-14

**LOCATION:** Microsoft Teams video conference

**DATE & TIME:** May 27, 2020 at 2:00 P.M.

#### **IN ATTENDANCE:**

Jeff Aguinaldo HDOT-HWY-K Eric Fujikawa HDOT-HWY-K

Zey Tong Austin Tsutsumi & Associates, Inc. Kyle Shinyama Austin Tsutsumi & Associates, Inc.

Alyssa Carveiro Earthworks Pacific Inc.

James Hasenyager Cushnie Construction Company, Inc.

Syed Shah Shah and Associates

The meeting started at 2:00 P.M. Project Engineer, Jeff Aguinaldo began the meeting with an introduction and gave a brief overview of the project.

Anything said at this meeting is for clarification purposes only, the bid documents shall govern over anything said today and discrepancies shall be clarified by addendum.

All questions that resulted from this meeting were directed to be submitted through HIePRO and will be formally answered through the addendum.

The following questions were raised at the meeting:

**Question #1:** Does this project have a DBE goal?

**Response:** Since this project is State-funded only, there is no DBE goal.

**Question #2:** The plans on Plans Sheet TS-2 mention 36' and 34' for the Type II signals, but on the Sheet TS-3 table, there is a 20 next to it?

**Response:** The 20' refers to the standard height of the Type II poles. The 36' and 34' refer to the length the pole mast arms,

With no further questions or comments, the pre-bid meeting was adjourned at 2:15 P.M.

The minutes of the meeting will be distributed in Addendum No. 1 on the Contract Plans. Contractors will be notified via HIePRO when the addendum will be available.

# Kaumualii Highway Intersection Improvements at Waimea Canyon Drive and Menehune Road/Halepule Road Project No. 50B-01-14

Pre-Bid Meeting 5/27/2020, 2:00 PM, Microsoft Teams Video Conference

